Page 1
Regular Meeting of the Board of Directors, December 18, 2025 age

-

Hazel Hawkins

MEMORIAL HOSPITAL

REGULAR MEETING OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
SAN BENITO HEALTH CARE DISTRICT
911 SUNSET DRIVE, HOLLISTER, CALIFORNIA
THURSDAY, DECEMBER 18, 2025 - 5:00 P.M.
SUPPORT SERVICES BUILDING, 2ND FLOOR, GREAT ROOM
IN-PERSON AND BY VIDEO CONFERENCE

Members of the public may participate remotely via Zoom at the following link https.//zoom.us/join
with the following Webinar ID and Password:
Meeting ID: 991 5300 5433
Security Passcode: 007953

Mission Statement - The San Benito Health Care District is a public agency that serves as a responsive,

comprehensive health care resource for its patients, physicians, and the health care consumers of the
community.

Vision Statement - San Benito Health Care District is committed to meeting community health care needs
with quality care in a safe and compassionate environment.

AGENDA
Presented By:
1. Call to Order /R (Johnson)
2. Board Announcements (Johnson)
3. Public Comment (Johnson)

This opportunity is provided for members of the public to make a brief statement, not to
exceed three (3) minutes, on matters within the jurisdiction of this District Board, which
are not otherwise covered under an item on this agenda. This is the appropriate place to
comment on items on the Consent Agenda. Board Members may not deliberate or take
action on an item not on the duly posted agenda. Written comments for the Board should
be provided to the Board clerk or designee for the official record. Whenever possible,
written correspondence should be submitted to the Board in advance of the meeting to
provide adequate time for its consideration. Speaker cards are available.



Page 2
Regular Meeting of the Board of Directors, December 18, 2025 age

4. Consent Agenda — General Business (Johnson)

The Consent Agenda deals with routine and non-controversial matters. The vote on the
Consent Agenda shall apply to each item that has not been removed. A Board Member
may pull an item from the Consent Agenda for discussion. One motion shall be made to
adopt all non-removed items on the Consent Agenda.

A. Consider and Approve Minutes:
o Regular Meeting of the Board of Directors — November 20, 2025.
o Special Meeting of the Board of Directors — December 8, 2025.

B. Receive Minutes: District Bylaws / Policies and Procedures Committee -
e November 10, 2025

C. Receive Officer/Director Written Reports
e Physician Services & Clinic Operations
e Skilled Nursing Facilities (Mabie Southside/Northside)
e Laboratory and Radiology (No Report)
e Foundation
e Public Relations
e PMO Project Summary

Recommended Action: Approval of Consent Agenda Items (A) through (C).

S. Receive Informational Reports
A. Chief Executive Officer (Verbal Report) (Casillas)

e Senator Laird — Visit Update
e Congresswoman Lofgren — Visit Update

» Public Comment

B. Chief Nursing Officer (Descent)
e Dashboard - November 2025
e EMTALA Survey Update

» Public Comment

C. Chief Financial Officer (Robinson)
e Facilities - Project Dashboard — November, 2025
¢ Financial Statements — November, 2025

e Finance Dashboard — November, 2025
e Supplemental Payments — November, 2025

» Public Comment

6. Action Items

A. Consider and Approve Resolution NO. 2025-07 Fixing the Times and Dates of the Regular Meetings of
the San Benito Health Care District Board of Directors, from February 26, 2026 through January 28,
2027.



Page 3
Regular Meeting of the Board of Directors, December 18, 2025 age

Recommended Action: Approve Resolution NO. 2025-07 Fixing the Times and Dates of the Regular
Meetings of the San Benito Health Care District Board of Directors, from February 26, 2026 through
January 28, 2027.

Report

Board Questions

Public Comment
Motion/Second
Action/Board Vote-Roll Call

vVVvVvVvVYyY

B. Consider and Approve Professional Services Agreement with Mostafa Sadek, M.D.
Recommended Action: Approve Professional Services Agreement with Mostafa Sadek, M.D.

Report

Board Questions

Public Comment
Motion/Second
Action/Board Vote-Roll Call

vVVVVYY

7. Public Comment (Johnson)

This opportunity is provided for members to comment on the closed session topics, not to exceed three (3)
minutes.

8. Closed Session (Johnson)
See the Attached Closed Session Sheet Information

9. Reconvene to Open Session (Johnson)
10. Closed Session Report (Counsel)
11. Adjournment (Johnson)

The next Regular Meeting of the Board of Directors is scheduled for Thursday, January 22, 2026 at 5:00
p.m., Great Room.



Page 4
Regular Meeting of the Board of Directors, December 18, 2025 aee

The complete Board packet including subsequently distributed materials and presentations is available at the
Board Meeting, in the Administrative Offices of the District, and posted on the District’s website at

https://www.hazelhawkins.com/news/categories/meeting-agendas/. All items appearing on the agenda are
subject to action by the Board. Staff and Committee recommendations are subject to change by the Board.

Any public record distributed to the Board less than 72 hours prior to this meeting in connection with any
agenda item shall be made available for public inspection at the District office. Public records distributed
during the meeting, if prepared by the District, will be available for public inspection at the meeting. If the
public record is prepared by a third party and distributed at the meeting, it will be made available for public
inspection following the meeting at the District office.

Notes: Requests for a disability-related modification or accommodation, including auxiliary aids or
services, to attend or participate in a meeting should be made to District Administration during regular
business hours at 831-636-2673. Notification received 48 hours before the meeting will enable the District
to make reasonable accommodations.

Please note that room capacity is limited and available on a first-come, first-served basis.



Page 1 0of 2

SAN BENITO HEALTH CARE DISTRICT BOARD OF DIRECTORS
December 18, 2025

AGENDA FOR CLO¢ ESSION
Pursuant to California Government Code Section 54954.2 and 54954.5, the board agenda may describe closed session agenda
items as provided below. No legislative body or elected official shall be in violation of Section 54954.2 or 54956 if the closed
session items are described in substantial compliance with Section 54954.5 of the Government Code.

CLOSED SESSION AGENDA ITEMS

O LICENSE/PERMIT DETERMINATION
(Government Code §54956.7)

Applicant(s): (Specify number of applicants)

O CONFERENCE WITH REAL PROPERTY NEGOTIATORS
(Government Code §54956.8)

X ERENCE WITH LEGAL NSEL-E TING LITIGATION
(Government Code §54956.9(d)(1))

Name of cases:

1. PERB Case No. SF-CE-2231-M

2. PERB Case No. SF-CE-2232-M

3. Savista, LLC vs. Hazel Hawkins Medical Center, File No. 6337918

4. Nick Hadrian Gabriel v. San Benito Health Care District; Does 1-100, San Benito County Superior Court

O CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL-ANTICIPATED LITIGATION
(Government Code §54956.9)

O LIABILITY CLAIMS
(Government Code §54956.95)

Claimant: (Specify name unless unspecified pursuant to Section 54961):
Agency claimed against: (Specify name):

O T UBLIC SERV RF ITIES
(Government Code §54957)

Consultation with: (Specify the name of law enforcement agency and title of officer):

O PUBLIC EMPL PPOINTMENT
(Government Code §54957)
Title:
O LI LOYMENT
(Government Code §54957)

Title:



Page 2 of 2

PUBLIC EMPLOYEE PERFORMANCE EVALUATION
(Government Code §54957)

(Specify position title of the employee being reviewed):

Title:
PUBL MPLOYEE DISCIPLINE/DIS g LEASE
(Government Code §54957)

(No additional information is required in connection with a closed session to consider discipline,
dismissal, or release of a public employee. Discipline includes potential reduction of compensation.)

CONFERENCE WITH LABOR 0TI R
(Government Code §54957.6)

Agency designated representative: Anne Olsen
Employee organization: NUHW

CONFERENCE WITH LABOR NEGOTIATOR
(Government Code §54957.6)

Agency designated representative:
Unrepresented employees

CASE REVIEW/PLANNING
(Government Code §54957.8)

(No additional information is required to consider case review or planning.)

REPORT INVOLVING TRADE SECRET
(Government Code §37606 & Health and Safety Code § 32106)

Discussion will concern: (Specify whether discussion will concern proposed new service, program, or
facility):

1. Trade Secrets. Strategic Planning, Proposed New Programs, and Services.

Estimated date of public disclosure: (Specify month and year):

HEARINGS/REPORTS
(Evidence Code Sections 1156 and 1157.7; Health and Safety Code Section 32106)

Subject matter: (Specify whether testimony/deliberation will concern staff privileges, report of medical
executive committee, or report of quality assurance committee):

1. Report — Credentials

CHA LAINT INVOLVING IN ATION PROT ED
BY FEDERAL LAW (Government Code §54956.86)

(No additional information is required to discuss a charge or complaint pursuant to Section 54956.86.)

ADJOURN TO OPEN SESSION



-

Hazel Hawkins

MEMORIAL HOSPITAL

REGULAR MEETING OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
SAN BENITO HEALTH CARE DISTRICT
SUPPORT SERVICES BUILDING, 2"°-FLOOR, GREAT ROOM
IN PERSON AND BY VIDEO CONFERENCE

THURSDAY, NOVEMBER 20, 2025
5:00 P.M.
MINUTES

Directors Present
Bill Johnson, Board Member
Devon Pack, Board Member
Victoria Angelo, Board Member (Absent)
Nick Gabriel, Board Member via teleconference
Josie Sanchez, Board Member

1

Also Present
Mary Casillas, Chief Executive Officer
Mark Robinson, Chief Financial Officer
Karen Descent, Chief Nursing Officer
Amy Breen-Lema, VP Ambulatory & Physician Services
Suzie Mays, Vice President, Information & Strategic Services
Heidi A. Quinn, District Legal Counsel

1. Call to Order/Roll Call

Director Johnson called the meeting to order at 5:01 PM. A quorum was present, and attendance was taken
by roll call. Directors Johnson, Pack, Sanchez, and Gabriel were present; Director Angelo was absent.

Public Comment
An opportunity for public comment on the closed session items was provided; public comment was received
from Mr. Bernosky.

Closed Session

President Johnson announced the items to be discussed in the Closed Session, as listed on the posted
Agenda: a) Public Employee Performance Evaluation, Government Code §54957; b) Conference with
Labor Negotiator; Government Code §54957.6 (NUHW); ¢) Conference with Labor Negotiator;
Government Code §54957.6 (unrepresented employees); and d) Hearing/Report, Credentials, Evidence
Code Sections 1156 and 1157.7; Health and Safety Code Section 32106(b).

1

Pursuant to Government Code section 54953(b), Director Gabriel participated in the meeting via teleconference from 923

Dana Drive, Redding, CA.

1



The members of the Board entered into a closed session at 5:04 pm.

. Reconvene Open Session/Closed Session Report

The Board of Directors reconvened to open session at 6:10 p.m.
Counsel reported that the Board met regarding several items:

* Public Employee Performance Evaluation for the Chief Executive Officer was received.

* Conference with Labor negotiator NUHW and unrepresented employees: a report was
provided to the Board with no reportable action.

* The Board also received the credentials report, which was received and approved on motion of
Director Sanchez, second by Director Pack, and unanimously approved 4-0.

* The Board received the Credentials report.

. Board Announcements

Director Johnson thanked Liz Sparling for doing a great job putting together the Foundation Dinner
Dance.

. Public Comment

An opportunity for public comment was provided, and individuals were given three minutes to address
the Board Members and Administration. No public comment was received.

Director Johnson announced that we would be jumping to number 10. Action Item A.
A. Consider and Approve Audited Financial Statements FYE June 30, 2025.

A report was provided by Mr. Rick Jackson. The report is also included in the packet.
An opportunity for public comment was provided; no public comment was received.

MOTION: By Director Pack to approve Audited Financial Statements FYE June 30, 2025; Seconded by
Director Sanchez.

Moved/Seconded/ Carried: Ayes: Directors Johnson, Pack, Sanchez, and Gabriel. Motion approved 4-0
by roll call.

. Consent Agenda - General Business

e Consider and Approve Minutes of the Regular Meeting of the Board of
Directors — October 23, 2025.

e Receive Minutes: District Bylaws / Policies and Procedures Committee —
o October 20, 2025.

A. Receive Officer/Director Written Reports - No action required.
e Provider Services & Clinic Operations
e Skilled Nursing Facilities (Mabie Southside/Northside)
e Laboratory and Radiology
¢ Foundation Report
e Public Relations
¢ PMO Project Summary Report




B. Consider and Approve Policies:

e Area of Concern (Revised)
Board Member Roster (Revised)
Confidentiality (Revised)
Oath of Office (New)
Corporate Compliance (Revised)
Yearly Calendar Events (Revised)
Practitioner Code of Conduct (New)
Medical Staff Chain of Command (New)

C. Consider and Approve Privileges:
e Physician Assistant — Clinical Medicine (Revised)

Director Johnson presented the consent agenda items (A-C) to the Board for action.

MOTION: By Director Sanchez to approve the Consent Agenda, Items (A-C); Seconded by Director
Johnson.

Moved/Seconded/ Carried. Ayes: Directors Sanchez, Pack, Johnson, and Gabriel. Approved 4-0 by roll
call.

. Receive Informational Reports

A. Chief Executive Officer (Verbal Report)

Ms. Casillas commended Liz Sparling and the Foundation Team for such a great job with the Foundation
Dinner Dance. She also recognized Anthony Sotelo and all the engineering department for working long
hours the past 3-days. He vernal report also included information regarding the physician needs assessment
that WiFli will be conducting, and the community needs assessment, which will begin in February. Her
also included information regarding refreshing the hospital brand and logo.

An opportunity was provided for public comment; no comments were received.

B. Chief Nursing Officer
e Dashboard — October 2025

Ms. Descent provided a report that is included in the packet.
An opportunity was provided for public comment; no comments were received.

C. Facilities and Finance Committee — October 20. 2025
e Facilities Update — September 22, 2025
Financial Statements — August 2025
Finance Dashboard — August 2025
Supplemental Payments — August 2025
Facilities Update — September 2025
Financial Statements — September 2025
Finance Dashboard — September 2025

Mr. Robinson provided his CFO report, which included an update on Facilities, financial statements,
and dashboard. These reports are included in the Board packet.




An opportunity was provided for public comment; no public comment was received.

9. Action Items
B. Consider and Approve Pension Plan GASB 68 Report FYE June 30. 2025.

Mr. Robinson provided a verbal report, which is also included in the packet.
An opportunity for public comment was provided; no comment was received.

MOTION: By Director Pack to Approve Consider and Approve Pension Plan GASB 68 Report FYE
June 30, 2025; Seconded by Director Sanchez.

Moved/Seconded/ Carried: Ayes: Directors Gabriel, Johnson, Sanchez, and Pack. Approved 4-0 by
roll call.

C. Consider and Approve Response to Medical Executive Committee Letter.

Director Johnson asked if any board member would like to recuse themselves before providing the
report. Director Johnson provided the report, which is also included in the packet.

An opportunity for public comment was provided; no comment was received.

MOTION: By Director Pack to Approve Response to Medical Executive Committee Letter;
Seconded by Director Sanchez.

Moved/Seconded/ Carried: Ayes: Directors Johnson, Pack, Sanchez, and Gabriel. Approved 4-0 by
roll call.

D. Consider and Approve Ad Hoc Committee’s Recommendation Regarding Incentive and COLA to
CEO Compensation.

Director Johnson provided a verbal report and also went over the incentive, which are also included in
the packet.

An opportunity for comment was provided; comment received by Mr. Bernosky.

MOTION: By Director Pack to Approve Ad Hoc Committee’s Recommendation for and incentive of
8 percent and 3 percent Cola; Seconded by Director Sanchez.

Moved/Seconded/ Carried: Ayes: Directors Johnson, Pack, Sanchez, and Gabriel. Approved 4-0 by
roll call.

10. Adiournment:
There being no further regular business or actions, the meeting was adjourned at 7:18 p.m.
The next Regular Meeting of the Board of Directors is scheduled for Thursday, December 18, 2025, at 5:00
p.m.




-

Hazel Hawkins

MEMORIAL HOSPITAL

SPECIAL MEETING OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
SAN BENITO HEALTH CARE DISTRICT
SUPPORT SERVICES BUILDING, 2"°-FLOOR, GREAT ROOM
IN PERSON AND BY VIDEO CONFERENCE

MONDAY, DECEMBER 8, 2025
5:00 P.M.
DRAFT MINUTES

Directors Present
Bill Johnson, Board Member
Devon Pack, Board Member
Victoria Angelo, Board Member
Nick Gabriel, Board Member - (Absent)
Josie Sanchez, Board Member — (Absent)

Also Present
Mary Casillas, Chief Executive Officer
Mark Robinson, Chief Financial Officer
Karen Descent, Chief Nursing Officer
Amy Breen-Lema, Vice President, Ambulatory & Physician Services
Suzie Mays, Vice President, Information & Strategic Services
Heidi A. Quinn, District Legal Counsel

1. Call to Order/Roll Call
Director Johnson called the meeting to order at 5:03 PM. A quorum was present, and attendance was taken
by roll call. Directors Johnson, Pack, and Angelo were present. Directors Gabriel and Sanchez absent.

Director Johnson stated that circumstances have arisen since posting of the agenda for the special meeting,
which require immediate action by the Board of Directors (“Board”). Under the Brown Act, the Board
may add an item to the agenda in the event of an emergency related to work stoppage (Government Code
section 54956.5). To add an item to the agenda under Anticipated Litigation — Initiation of Litigation, the
Board must unanimously approve a motion to amend the agenda. If approved, there would be two cases
under Anticipated Litigation: Initiation of Litigation (Government Code section 54956.9(d)(4), and the
emergency provisions would apply to both items.

An opportunity for public comment was provided, and there was no public comment.

Director Johnson made a motion to amend the agenda to add one additional case for Anticipated Litigation
— Initiation of Litigation (Gov’t Code section 54956.9(d)(4) t, and seconded by Director Pack.

Moved/Seconded/ Carried. Ayes: Directors Johnson, Pack, and Angelo. Approved 3-0 by roll call.
Directors Gabriel and Sanchez were absent.

2. Public Comment



An opportunity for public comment was provided to members to comment on the closed session topics,
not to exceed three (3) minutes.

There was no public comment.

. Closed Session

President Johnson announced the items to be discussed in the Closed Session, as listed on the posted
Agenda: a) Conference with Legal Counsel-Existing Litigation (Government Code §54956.9)(d)(1), two
cases; b) Conference with Legal Counsel-Anticipated Litigation — Initiation of Litigation (Government
Code §54956.9(d)(4)), and c) Conference with Labor Negotiator (Government Code §54957.6) with
NUHW.

The members of the Board entered into a closed session at 5:10 pm.

. Reconvene Open Session/Closed Session Report

The Board of Directors reconvened in open session at 6:14 p.m. Counsel stated that two (3) matters were
discussed: a) Conference with Legal Counsel-Existing Litigation (Government Code §54956.9)(d)(1), b)
Conference with Legal Counsel-Anticipated Litigation (Government Code §54956.9), and c) Conference
with Labor Negotiator (Government Code §54957.6).

Under items a) Conference with Legal Counsel-Existing Litigation (Government Code §54956.9)(d)(1),
and c) Conference with Labor Negotiator (Government Code §54957.6). regarding NUHW, the Board
was provided a report but no reportable action was taken.

Under item b) Conference with Legal Counsel-Anticipated Litigation — Initiation of Litigation
(Government Code §54956.9), relating to NUHW’s Notice of Intent to Strike, the Board was notified
right before the meeting, that the strike was canceled. The Board received a report, but no reportable
action was taken.

. Adiournment:
There being no further regular business or actions, the meeting was adjourned at 6:16 p.m.

The next Regular Meeting of the Board of Directors is scheduled for Thursday, December 18, 2025, at
5:00 p.m.



To:
From:
Date:
Re:

-

Hazel Hawkins

MEMORIAL HOSPITAL

San Benito Health Care District Board of Directors .

Amy Breen-Lema, Vice President, Clinic, Ambulatory & Physician Services
December 4, 2025

All Clinics - November 2025

November 2025 Rural Health and Specialty Clinics' visit volumes

Total visits prior
Clinic Location cul;?;?mlt\::::ﬂh month
{October 2025)
Orthopedic
49 585
Specialty 0
Multi-Specialty 598 652
Sunset 795 857
Surgery & Primary 288 370
Care
San Juan Bautista 320 322
1st Street 513 696
4th Street 981 1,165
Barragan 437 618
Total 4,422 5,265

In September, we celebrated the retirement of Monika Hassler, PA-C, who has
been a dedicated advocate for women's health in our community for many
years, with the last decade spent serving patients at the 4th Street and our
Multispecialty clinics. Her commitment, compassion, and steady presence have
made a lasting impact on our patients and our team. She will be deeply missed
by both our staff and the community she cared for so well.

We continue our active recruitment efforts for primary care providers and
additional specialty services to meet the growing needs of our community.



o=

Hazel Hawkins

MEMORIAL HOSPITAL
Mabie Southside/Northside Skilled Nursing Facility

Board Report — December 2025

To: San Benito Health Care District Board of Directors

From: JayLee Davison, Interim Director of Nursing, Skilled Nursing Facility

1. Census Statistics: November 2025

1 Southside 2025 Northside 2025
Total Number of Admissions 9 Total Number of Admissions 3
Number of Transfers from HHH Number of Transfers from HHH
Number of Transfers to HHH Number of Transfers to HHH

3

1

Number of Deaths Number of Deaths 2
1

3

Number of Discharges Number of Discharges
Total Discharges Total Discharges
Total Census Days 1328 Total Census Days 1258

Note: Transfers are included in the number of admissions and discharges. Deaths are included in the number of discharges. Total
census excludes bed hold days.

0 O NN

2. Total Admissions: November 2025

Southside . From Payor ___Northside From Payor ]
6 HHMH Medicare 2 HHMH MEDICARE
1 Washington Health Medicare 1 HHMH/Re-Admit MEDICARE
1 Natividad Insurance
1 HHMH ER Visit CCA
Total: 9 Total:

3. Total Discharges by Payor: November 2025

L ‘Southside | 2025 Northside 2025 _—
Medicare 5 Medicare 0
Medicare MC 0 Medicare MC 0
CCA 1 CCA 1
Medical 0 Medical 0
Medi-Cal MC 0 Medi-Cal MC 0
Hospice 1 Hospice 2
Private (self-pay) 0 Private (self ay) 0
Insurance 1 Insurance 0
Total: 8 Total: 3

1



4. Total Patient Days by Payor: November 2025

Southside

Medicare
Medicare MC
CCA

Medical
Medi-Cal MC
Hospice

Private (self-pay)
Insurance

Bed Hold / LOA
Total:

Average Daily Census

2025
289
0
913
30
0
61
30
5
1
1329
44.30

Northside
Medicare
Medicare MC
CCA
Medical
Medi-Cal MC
Hospice
Private (self-pay)
Insurance
Bed Hold / LOA
Total:

Average Daily Census

1258
41.93




A
Hazel Hawkins Hospital

FOUNDATION
Caring for Our Community

TO: San Benito Health Care District Board of Directors
FROM: Liz Sparling, Foundation Director

DATE: December 2025

RE: Foundation Report for November

November & December Foundation Board Meeting:

The Foundation Board of Directors met on November 13, 2025 and had two presentations:

e Mendi Suber-Ventura, RN, HHMH Director of Surgical Services provided a presentation (she was called
off-site) for a request for a GE Care-station Anesthesia Delivery System workstation up to $70,000 to
replace one of three machines used in the ASC and OB. Karen Decent, CNO provided details about the
importance and necessity of the equipment.

¢ Dr. Armstrong, DO & Mishel Thomas, Clinic Operations Director, Rural Health Clinics & Specialty Offices
presented the need for the Urodynamics Bladder Ultrasound Equipment. This state-of-the-art
urogynecology equipment to support the new Women'’s Health Services program expansion. This
revenue-generating piece of equipment will be supporting the services of our new physician Dr. Volpe.

The Foundation Board also met on December 11 for our Annual Meeting/Holiday Lunch.

Finance Committee

a. Financial Report October November
1. Income $ 112,014.11 $141,487.03
2. Expenses $ 105,831.91 $14,282.99
3. New Donors 7 11
4. Total Donations 309 260
Allocations:

1. Urodynamics Bladder Ultrasound Equipment up to $40,000
2. GE Care-station Anesthesia Delivery System workstation up to $70,000

Directors Report:

Our Dinner Dance Fundraiser on 11.8.25 was a huge success! Thank you to our amazing donors—
your generosity made the night truly remarkable!

$63,1000 raised in the Live Auction

$90,150 raised for the WOWSs equipment

$117,840 in sponsorships for the event

$230,990 raised at the event dedicated to HHMH!

Fundraising Committee:

As of December 11, there have been 2,497 total donations raising $1,501,742.

Nominating Committee:

There are three open positions on Board of Trustees as of 12/31/25.

Terming Out: Ann Marie Barragan. Term ending and not renewing: Shari Hubbell & Charlie Bedolla.
Recommendation for New Board Members: Amy Gill, Ashley Rule & Danielle Nino.

Approved at the December Meeting:

Re-election of members with 12/31/25 1st term end date: Kay Filice and Amy Breen Lema

Board Officers for 2026: Brynn Gho - President, Salina Chacon - Vice President, Irene Recht - Treasurer,
Amy Breen Lema - Secretary, Irene Davis - Past President

10



YIAPPY "\u::.w "YEARI

The Foundatlon thanks you for'all of_

C - 01' the' n ilitvy Rooms at Mabie Northside and Mabie
Souchsnde Skilled Nutsmg Facilities

¢ $80,000 for a new Ultrasound for the Emergency Department
¢ $79,000 for a Hana® Orthopedic Surgical Table for the Surgery Center
¢ $70,000 for a GE Care-station Anesthesia Delivery System

W $68,000 for a Portable Breast Ultrasound Machine
$40,000 for Urodynamics Bladder Ultrasound Equipment

Totaling Over: $512,200 -~ —

Hazel Hawkins Hospital

FOUNDATION

Caring for Our Community

11



Hazel Hawkins Board of Director's Report December 2025

MEMORIAL HOSPITAL Marketing/Public Relations

MARKETING

e Social Media Posts

Title Date published Status Reach 0 Likes and reactions 0 Views ©
Tris weeh, we ad the honor of hostng a vsit from Congresswoman, Zoe Lofgr... Boost - FoDect2 10:00am 20K 3 4K
0 €3 shcte- @ Harei Hawies Hosots! =] S m—
This week we ceiebrated the retirement of Monika Hassler, PA, specializng ., Boost | - TruDec!l':18am 62K 134 93K
0 ﬁ Moo @ Hazel Hawans Haspitat ) _—
g To dear up confusion in the community, Hazel Hawkins Hospitalis not affitiate... Boost © - MonDec8,12%0m x) 28 K
=o g Shotse @ Hazel Hawkivs Hosat L) — =
comph the fre | revoad .. 5
\ Today we are completing repa:s £ the fire supp system on the herpad. Boost | - SatDech 700am %3 5 12§
0 B mcte @ Hazel Hawides Husota . = - -
Ao :
When every minute matters, so does every mee. Get quaiity, comoassionatee... ~ Boost -+ FriDec5, 248pm 187K 16 92
D R —
¢ ee @ HueHeminsHoota
When every minute matters, so does every mie. Get quaity, compassionatee... Boost - FrDec5,132m 15K 13 18K
o See @ Hare HawiinsHosptal - - —
1\ We are n the process of reasing the fire suppression systemon tre heipad. T... - Boost e FaDec, 1000am 13K 6 19K
Shete @ Hazel Hawies Hosoital H [ ] —
Resporse to misstatements posted by Benito Beet Beat this week Thisweek ... | Boost . TruDecd iHi0am 23K 40 39K
o . Te: @ Haze Hawkns Hosprai = — —]
? Support he Hazel Hawkins Hospital Auxikary and compiete some of your Chiis... Boost | - WecDec3 23pm 13K 7 2K
3.0 B Pt 0 sunthiaies ot - =] =
B g cold, too much turkey? OurCommuricy Heah Center on Sunset Deive .
: o ‘ B 7L Boost | FeNov28,730am e 6 &7
A B ohets @ bard Hawiies ot . . -
7 W n 4
Cough cold, too much turkey? Our Comawnity Healtn Center on Sunset Drive ... Boost | - Thubov2763%m 572 6 990
;; s tht. & Harsl Hawiics Hosaital - D -
= .. . ) ; N .
Wishing our commurity a Happy Thanksgiving! We are thankful far our empiey. . CBoost e TruNoy2T 133 k743 15 652
0 (9 octo @ HamlHawiins Hosotal . - -
Hoiiday hours for Thanksgving ang the weeke~d are posted below. Or Friday, .. Boost -« TruNoy 27 700am 733 2 1K
o ﬁ Photo- @ Hazel Hawkins Hosoits! ' - ’ =
Consider giing the "Gt of Life” by dorating blooc. Our next Blood Drive takes.. Boost v  WedNow 26 H0om ) 4 570
= . 0 B9 Ptotc o hazeswinsosotai ' ’ . -
O Execxmye Lzadtvsm.p Teamhc.stéd.a sweet treat for the empioyees on Mo . Boost - Tuehov25 2000m 10K 59 67K -
’ Mutimedsc @ Fazel Hawins Hosple! —— amsmesmn —
Today we had the ﬁomréfﬁcst;-jgav‘sitfvom Calforn:a State Serater Jonn L... Boost | MonNowZd 255pm 42K 51 76K
a Dhate: @ Haral Hawking Hosoitat — —
IR Cough. ol oo much urkey? F you areFesling uncer the weather on the Fric .
s -Ouan.cad. £y you Chihe T Boost e MonNov24, 208pm 15K 19 24K
a0 8 Phote @ Hazs MawinsHosaital ) - - —
We fove our Perioperative Team: Last week was Periaperative (Surgery) Staff A... Boost - . WedNov'9,3:23om 79K 186 42K
(9 rote- @ FaminawiinsHosatal —
Today was abusy day for our staff Qur Feadss&agkamspﬂ the moming vo... Boost - WedNov1d 3dpm 42K % 786K
. Matimeda @ HazelMawirs bosoiul e — ——



Hazel HOWkiﬂS Board of Director's Report December 2025 -

MEMORIAL HOSPITAL page 2

|EMPLOYEE ENGAGEMENT

Employees:
¢ Hazel's Headlines
e Working on Holiday events for employees:
= National Brownie Day 12/8
Ugly Sweater Contest 12/19
Gingerbread House Decorating Contest 12/19
Casual for a Cause Blue Jean Day 12/19
Hot Chocolate and Cookies 12/23
Basket Raffle 12/15

L

MEDIA

Media Statement:

« HHMH Response to Inaccurate Commentary on Benito Beet Beat Facebook Post

Press Release:

¢ HHMH Named to 2025 Maternity Care Honor Roll

COMMUNITY

Public:
Working with Marcus Young from townKRYER PR agency on proactive PR.

« Participating in San Benito Leadership Institute Alumni committee

13



WV 6T:TT SZ0Z/ST/CT

BUENENRSE) P z010pU3 5 ol , |opowal pun UDIAIOIOW ABOIOIPDY
$SNOSIP Of PAINPaYOs ABojoIippy/qoT ayspouleg UoH PIOHUO asl §eoz/ 1/t jJuawdinbs jo juswssassy ’ *
aq o} Bulysaw
1040810 zaJspul d 6d
pajugns josodosd ABOIOIPDY/OT alepPOWSY PIOH UO Qadl asi pPajiwgns |0sodo.d aprJbAn W
"BUIODUO SbuSaWl
HuDJB |YOH "aulpoap SPIOPUD}S
1024 B} 4o pus|  s8dInIes poddng zoawoy obior BUIGBUO asl aal1| Aveyos 3 eouDdwo? owwsies 2IWSIOS
8y} 810)8q pajwgns 10}08.1q oSS IVOH 199W Of 5p0IBAN
aq o} 0} /|INP8YDS
uo un(d aoupdwod
i} JUSIDNS
JI 995 0} Juswadp|dal
$901A195 |D21BINS DINJUBA sjuawanbay
yod Jadoayd/is|ows R 90r| ScoT/1E/Tl ¥20C/0Z/ 11 SaFio 6HBERA jspoway JO
10} UOLOBISBAUI 40 10}o34g 19GNS IPUSK QdHSO JO buyopan
jousBiul Buipuad
BESEECRCEIRE)
ON 'P3}31dwoDd %408 plellet-Y]Tg] za19pul jusweoD|day 2pOWSYN O
-0y xuddy ‘Abmisapun ABojoippy /g ajepoulag el 809 9eoe/1/e yeoz/e/s J187ZAIPUY g ©50Yd QDT 1ep 4ao1
I UOHDNIJSUOD)
{uoypo0| usubuwiad
O} BAOW O} SISZA|DUD
ApD31 pup pPaa)Idwod
1 Z 950U 9o ioyoa1Q z318pu3 UoUDPIDA 2POLWSY aD
JIJUN }NO 350D A||DIDIO ABojoippy/ao ayeppuIsy 9eoe/1/e J9ZAIDUY | 9sDYd 9o 1ep 4901
jou jiim joaloud)
'$59201d UOYDPIDA
BU} JO %G8 UO Ajjusund
uosipew J0}03IQ
puo Qg yim sbulgsaw ASOUIDU DISADY USSADN asi vZ0ozZ/v /11| uoyooyusa Buipunodwo) All  1edasy Aoowinyd g
jo21uYo3} Bulobup Hd
uioaq
O} UOIDNIISUOD JOY o551
Appa1 810 O PUL NI #0910 D|SADY USSADN 0 adl yZoT/viTL SOUIYODW SIXAd MON uoyo|IBisul g4
R AdDWIDYd
uouDo0| Adouuoyd
10} [pAciddo Bupuad
‘TL/TL Jo H8am
HDJS O} PSINPAYDS 8ID S50IAIOG
sjuswainbal jyDH J18d : A nos
O DJIDISUl PUD BUIGDD SIDD |INdY Zapupbuia{ oor asl yeoT/eLly HUND3S {UDJU) SDJUNDSS/SONH
; JO 104281 JoIUaS
DM ‘PajaIdwoD si
JJom Bungod Bins paw
“AAO|PIOM
auyal o} siosiasadns S9DIAIBS
95N0Y PUD SUIPD O} 210D 8oy Zapupula4 O0f QgL v20T/9/Z1 2JDM}OS Bulnpayos asINN UOJDAOU}
BA|| §i jonpoid ‘Bulobuo| jo 10}o8aq JoIuss
Buluiby 1040810/H04S
apdn Jo¥| Ieploypis A9y JA1 09 9jpa yois asoding SWDN §o3fos

pipog Jaquiasa( - pipoqyspq joafoid

14



'ssaiboud

Ul SI9PIO JOM pPauuD|d
PUD SAIDIUSASIY
*SIBPIO NIOM BADBLOD
10} 67/6 SOM BAIT 0D

S22IAIBS poddng
10}o8.IQq I01UsS

zaJwny abor

WnIPawW

BUEMENRISE)

pup Bulwuoid

10} W8} |DUIS}Ul PUD
AJINDSS '[| “SSINIIOD} UM
sBulpeaw panuiuoD

Adpbiay |0OISAY
JO Jojo8Ig

DOPISI UNf

ybiH PIOH UO

‘sabubyo

a)DW O} papaau
$398M g |ouoippo

- uBisep oypowWsYos
M8INB) O} /71 Bulyesw

$821AJ8S poddng
Joyo811Qq Joluas

zalwny ablor

WNIPOW

‘uibaq

up2 $s300ud PIG 10}
JUBSWSSILIBAPY |YDH O}
Pa}IWLQNS USaQ 8ADY
yosloud pup j8s 4D %0S

$801A18¢$ poddng
1040911 JoIusS

DINJUBA
-199NS IPUSW

ybiH

"S|DACIAAD J3ISIOH
1O AlD Buipuag
'S3JDP UOHD|[DISUl
pup Buiwisd

1O} WDS} I04ODIUOD
|oleusb ay) pup
JoUIBUl Yim Buiuub)d

saoIAleS poddng
JleTtet-Y g FlelVEIN

zanwoy abior

wNpaw

"PoWWDIDOIa
aq o} juswdinba Jayo
40 Buiuup|d ‘patoAlOD

ud9g soy Joop

1581 (jpsodoud Buipomo)

“Jwiad Buipiing

anss| o4 paubisso

Buleq 10}004u0D
Buipuad ‘josloid

8y} paaoiddo soy (VOH

AN » JwbW
Biawig Jo Jo}oa1Q

zawoy abior

“JO9HYDID Ylim
UOID||D}SUI JOJ UOIDDO)
BYIS JO UODUWLIUOD PUD
IOPUSA YpMm JISIA B)IS

Jopoauq
ABojolpoy/qo

zaJspu3l
ajjepouleg

wnpaw

PIOH UO

WV 6T:TT S20¢/ST/TT

waysAs Buipanol

seoe/ /L seoz/UL BuussuiBus jusund 8op|day upIeIos
puowap

[epoway
asl §z0T/1/9 BuoBuo ypm disy o}

uoyp0| JusuND Buipuodx3 oD Adoisy] 1091sAUd
2IU0 Adpiay; spods

ddl seoe/1/L SND04 PUDAXS PUD 9IDACUSY AdpidY] spods sno04
Juswpndaqg Buissadold a|usys

Qal §Z0T/91/6 10y juswdinba Qs gF 00r|  tusWDDIdSY JOZILISIS
ODSWY M3U JO UOHO||D}sUl
OUSID |y
0} §50D OU JD S$18}D3Y JOJDM

agl ST/ 62/8 MU SADY UDD OM S1UM suoynog ABisu3 uopliim
SUOIDDO| & :WDIB0I] Z MDD

asl §20Z/11/g| $s822y JooQ + OSS / Anoss DPONIBAL

SUDYS ApDay ayo
asl asl HOY pPDaY 9YOW

dW uaum djay oy} Joupal]

pod Jopny) Buibow,

pipog Jlaquiada( - pipoqyspq joaloid

15




WV 6T:TT SZ0Z/ST/CT

%CT S PIOH UO
%0 0 anpie
POLIDIS ' %0L 91
L lou/mau 210/55Qd)
aal o6 psuupid %0 0
SAl=OB PS{OWHES % INNOD SNIVLS
% SNLV1S MSV1
_ _ %_&_
qdngssoood]  Uopoion] opoosoN ) PO 53 PSS 1] suolnlos
1 dany il Ju| UOWO(DS adl scozT/eL/s ‘P ! ¥ } 2100U}DSH UBIDS
puD APO3J S| JDAIDS J0}081Q DIDP MDS SAIYDID ([IM UBIDD
‘sioda) pasu J0}081q Za19pu3
BADY 8M DU} 5, 1D yjod|  ABojoipoy/a0T ajjeppulag aat i eo0(day SUIBSS 13
$50.001q jolloF) Mwo_aww SADW a1zn Jotel-) D8H DIUCO8 uoyoiuBWSdU SOOW
ul BUIP(ING AIDUOKDIA 1084DUS U W S 9z0T/ /L SToT/LL/é p ¥ UiOBH OIu0L 0813 asuDdxg YoBHPaW
UOIDUWLIO| “dA
‘ADmuapun "SI0
OM UOID|[D4sul ButsiNN P3|IXS 3PISYINOS
uolyPPUNOS
PUD PBALID SADY SWSY! — Bulupds zi asl §T0C/ve/L PUD SPISYLON SIGDW Zau| swooy Ajinbuoi)
paJapIQ "9INPaYDs uo 19944 9 LWDI||IM 0 SWOOI AIOSuUas
BuissaiBoid swool yjog MOl oinadoiayy paypoIpad
‘sBubpyoxa 'sBuiuaaI0s yjoay
UOIDWLIOUI {UBJSISUOD 2 '$2INSOAX® ‘SUOIIDZIUNWIW}
DM/U}o8H
i a— 20A0/dw3| N UOA ukeqDZIZ 9z0e/9/\|  sz0T/Tl9 40 AuLaIsia Snoidu SIBAYIOS Uik
2INsuUd O} Spjaly DIPP ) : % Buipodas aoun)dwod|  saiojdw3 siomnuiw|
fleTie:Tlg]
Buubiip puo Buluysp 21pwWOoIND ‘BuNdLYy
uo Buisnooy ‘asoyd yioay asio|dwa suljwnsiys
Buiddow aoppay|
*MBIADI IO} pajuasaid $8DIAIBS
puD Pa}o3||0D 2.0 8Ny ZapupuIa4 D01 PIOH UO agl y20Z/01/6 2o0|day WIBJSAS ||DD 8SINN
siDjap Budud| JO Jopdanqg Jouss
61/21 IWVOH
O} PS}IWIQgNs G O}
painpayos pup josloid .
uBisap ayy ul Aguaund SNODIDIOU D B _woo_wao
SI UOLD||DISUL JO) JO3l01d|  s81MI8S poddng pJozZOY ui9Qq O 8NP
zanwoy sbuor Qal §zoz/vi/1|  ino pesoyd aq of pasnbal podiieH a3

‘1Jo ubis puly Buipuay
'9/Z1 pejoIdwod

SOM [DAOWIBI
ppis/uoyiiowsp josloid
IvDH AdusbBiswiy (3)

10§28A(] JOIuSS

$1°vD Ul pemo||o 18Buo| ou
PUD WBJSAS 444V UD S| LWBISAS

pipog laquiada( - piboqyspbq joalfoid

16



WY 6T:TT S20Z/ST/TT

sjsenbay
abupbyd

SW3ll ONION3d

%001 £T V10l

%6 z 0
%2C S wnIpsw
%0L 9l UbiH

% INNOD ALNONNd

% ALIYOINd 1D3rodd

%001 £T V101

%0 0

%6 4 buiobuQ

pipog laquiadaq - pipoqyspbq joafoid

17



HUMAN RESOURCES DASHBOARD 2025

DEPARTMENTAL METRICS September October November YTD
# Employees 712 716 716 709
# New Hires 20 12 8 102
# Terminations 10 13 8 89
Overall Turnover 1.40% 1.82% 1.12% 12.54%
Nursing Turnover 1.48% 2.22% 1.50% 18.56%
Terms By Union September October November YTD
The California Nurses Association (CNA)
2 3 2 25
National Union of Healthcare Workers (NUHW)
5 5 2 40
California License Vocational Nurses (CLVN)
0 1 0 2
Engineers and Scientists of California (ESC)
0 0 0 1
Non-Union
3 4 4 21
Terms By Reason (V=Voluntary & IV= Involuntary) September October November YTD
Personal (V) 3 3 0 27
New Opportunity(V) 3 3 4 22
Retirement (V) 0 3 3 10
Schedule (V) 0 0 0 2
Job Abandonment (V) 0 0 0 2
No Reason Given (V) 0 0 0 0
Relocating (V) 1 0 0 7
School (V) 0 0 0 1
No Show (V) 0 0 0 0
RIF{IV) 0 0 0 0
Performance (1V) 3 4 1 18

18



Chief Nursing Officer Report
December 2025

e EMTALA Survey
e (Cal Hospital Compare’s 2025 Maternity Care Honor Roll
e BETA HEART

CNO Dashboard November 2025
November November YTD Total

Description 2025 Actual | 2025 Budget Budget
ED Visits 2,253 2,340 11,381
ED Admission % 10%:> 10%>
LWBS % <2.0% <2.0%
Door to Provider <10 min <10 min
MS admissions 105 549
ICU admissions 15 87
Deliveries 27 161
OR Inpatient 40 217
ASC/OP Cases 32 191
Gl 91 453

Within 10% of Target

19



OR Cases By Service Line
2025 SEPTEMBER| OCTOBER | NOVEMBER
TOTAL SURGERIES ** 189 201 210|
GENERAL SURGERY 40 28 37
ORTHOPEDIC TOTAL 34 43 41
PODIATRY 0 0 0|
TOTAL JOINTS 3 6 3
UROLOGY 2 5 4|
OB/GYN TOTAL 18 18 16|
C/SECTIONS 6 6 6|
ENT TOTAL 2 3 1
GI TOTAL 93 104 109)|
GI ASC 82 99 104
GIINO 2 1 1
GI INPT 9 4 4
GI CANCELS* 1 0 0|
*Cancels not included in GI Total
*#*These rotals include GI
OR Cases By Service Line
2024 SEPTEMBER| OCTOBER | NOVEMBER
TOTAL SURGERIES ** 164 228 180|
GENERAL SURGERY a8 40 33
ORTHOPEDIC TOTAL 25 28 25
PODIATRY 0 1 1
TOTAL JOINTS 2 0 0|
UROLOGY 5 6 3
OB/GYN TOTAL 8 24 21
C/SECTIONS 2 8 8
ENT TOTAL 1 1 1
GI TOTAL 87 129 96
GI ASC 82 124 95
GIINO 1 0 0
GI INPT 4 5 1
GI CANCELS* 3 3 1
*Cancels not included in GI Total
**These totals include GI

20



-

Hazel Hawkins

MEMORIAL HOSPITAL

REGULAR MEETING OF THE FACILITIES AND FINANCE COMMITTEE
SAN BENITO HEALTH CARE DISTRICT
911 SUNSET DRIVE, HOLLISTER, CALIFORNIA
MONDAY, DECEMBER 15, 2025 - 4:30 P.M.
SUPPORT SERVICES BUILDING, 2"° FLOOR - GREAT ROOM

San Benito Health Care District is a public agency that serves as a responsive, comprehensive health care
resource for its patients, physicians and the community.

1. Call to Order

2. Update on Current Projects
e Project Dashboard — November 2025

3. Review Financial Updates
e Financial Statements — November 2025
e Finance Dashboard — November 2025
¢ Supplemental Payments — November 2025

4. Consider Recommendation for Board Approval of Professional Services Agreement with Mostafa
Sadek, M.D.

e Report
¢ Committee Questions
e Motion/Second

5. Public Comment

This opportunity is provided for members of the public to make a brief statement, not to exceed
three (3) minutes, on matters within the jurisdiction of this District Board Committee, which are
not on this agenda.

6. Adjournment

21



The next Facilities and Finance Committee meeting is scheduled for Monday, January 19, 2025 at
4:30 p.m.

The complete Facilities and Finance Committee packet, including subsequently distributed materials and
presentations, is available at the Facilities and Finance Committee meeting and in the Administrative Offices of
the District. All items appearing on the agenda are subject to action by the Facilities and Finance Committee. Staff
and Committee recommendations are subject to change by the Facilities and Finance Committee.

Notes: Requests for a disability-related modification or accommodation, including auxiliary aids or services, to
attend or participate in a meeting should be made to District Administration during regular business hours at 831-
636-2673. Notification received 48 hours before the meeting will enable the District to make reasonable
accommodations.

22



Buysod

PIq IO} jUBWIBSILISAPD
Buipuad {00-5€-5¥0TSTS
# jo8loid) [YDH o}
paHwWIgns sjuswnooyg
UOHONYSUOD %0G IPYIU|

saoIAI8S (0216INS
O Jopoauq

DINJUBA
-l2qngs ipusw

ybiH

"aouopInb H4AD
paau 0S|y "X} JudIdyNs
J1 985 0} Juswadp|dal
Hod sedpsys/Ig|ows
10} uolpBIsBAUl
joulajul Buipuay

$92IAIBS |D21BINS
J0 Jopoaug

DINJUBA
-19gns IpUSW

ybiH

‘qg soyd

10} 810D ‘dJOW |supd
|o2ou088 Bulupad
II4S "YDIOW [Hun
PBPUBIXd INPaYDS

Jopoallg
ABojolpoy/qoT

zasopu]
ayopoulag

ubiH

JOB50[0
1o8loid 104 ¥000

ADV DIA Z 8s0yd QD1
Ojul Pa||01 PUD PBSOID
8q M | 8spyd gp1

1042840
ABolotpoy/an]

zasepug
aj19pDUISg

ybiH

‘uiBaq O} UOYINISUOD
10} App8) 8ID

90 PUO NI $o94Y2ID
woy jpsodoid
uolp20| Asouwipyd
104 jproiddp Buipuayd

1042840
AdpDULDY4

DISADY USDADN

wnipaw

atopdn

a0y

19poya DS Ad)

Apoud

SNJOIS

WV 9T:2 §20Z/11/21

Juawppdag Buissed01d 3(U84S

a8l §20Z/91/6 Joj yuswdinba Qs 8y 00y| uswedDIday Joz|US|S
ODSWY MBU JO UOKHD||D}SUI

sor| szoe/ierzl|  veozsoz/i siuawainbey PINGRY 4O

AdHSO 1ad YO Buyopdn '

9£9 9zozT/ /e ¥zZ0z/e/9 juswop|day JezApUY Z asoyd qo1
(AluQ uoopioA)

85| STOT/IE/ZL ¥Z0z/1/9 ezABHIBAPOIBER | 3sDYyd 9o

asal yZoe/v/zL SOUIYDDW SIXAd MON uopBysUl g9

uoyping SA]1 09 310 HOIS asoding AWDN jo9dfold

sayiIop4 - pIpoqyspq §23fold 23d

23



WV 9T:£L S20Z/T1/2T

S|ogo)
Buussuibuz
'SA3 ‘AB)PS
‘uBisep JDWBYDS UO 8y ‘Auno8g 21U1D Adoaiay} spods snoo4
$108HYDID Yim BujIom Juswabouby ZoIWIDY SB.0 | LNIPSW sseiBoid Ul @i s20e/ /L pPUDdXd PUD 3}DACUUDY AdoJayl siods sno04
Adouablawi3
JO Jojoauq
00-G€-0£1TSTS # $oefoid
IVDH ‘PaHIWgns usaq Buussuibug —
soy aboyond/osloid 'SAT ‘AKej0S SnopInzDY O Buieq .9 sop
Uo|D|B}sy| 811 :Ajnoas i
-aInsop BuPUS | UBWISBOUDY za)wDy abior ubiH 920Z/1/¥ SZOZ/vL/L M_:w Mou_omwzmon_u. %H %%hm_c%h podiaH @3
‘paaIdwoDd usaq Aousbiawg ety e n——
soy uoylowasp josloid 0 Jojoauqg
IVOH AduabBiau] (3)
Uﬁoomww\ww\_wo_:ﬂw%ow sedneg
.Um>o_.aac ussq 8I03 /4NdY Z9puDUIsd DI ybiH adl yzoz/TLly AjNDaS Jupju| SOJUINDBS/SDONH
JO 1042811 I0Iuas
soy ajonb Bugos DM
‘pewwoiboid
aq 0} uswdinbae 1ayjo
10} BuuuD|d ‘PB}OARID Buuaauibug
uaaq spy Joop 'SAT ‘Ajy0s
159] (jpsodoid Buyiomo) a) ‘Ajundas T
‘yusad Buiplng USWISBDUDW zanwpy sbior yBiH 558J5014 U| Qdl SZOT/11/g| $s800V 100Q + OSS / Ajundas DPOYISAL
anssi 0} paubissp Aduabiaw3
Buiaq JoyooHu0D O Jopoaug
Buipuad ‘4osloid
8y} panoiddo soy |YDH
Jopoaig Ze1apuy i S SPD}S APDaY SADW
UoIsiosp bulpuad ABOJOIPDY/DT ayepouleg LUNIPSW ssaiboid ul a8l seoe/L/oL dW usuym diay o} Joupai| pod 19I01] Buibow,
Dupuny Dunosuibuy
PUD UOISSILIGNS 'SAT ‘Aj8)0S SPIOPUDIY
JUDIB Woly IYDH o)1 ‘AJunseg
zawDy o610 8] Buiobu 9JD¢ g d2uD|IdWOD DWW oS8
i Bumiom -9z/10/10]  HusweBouow IWDY r UBH 106uo aaL aaL| Aey w_uux BW_VE Qumuma.am IWSISS
810j2g pajwgns AousbBlawg
aq o} upjd 8ouDyAWOD 40 10}2311Q

saylIop4 - pipoqyspq 23foid D3a

24



aAll 06 pauuoid
aAl-06 pajouwlsa

Wv 9T:£ S20Z/1T/2T

%001 1L V101
%0 0 MO
%LT € WNIPaw
%EL 8 UbiH
% INNOD ALIONId
% ALRIONNd 123rO¥d
%001 1L V101
%0 0
%6 L b
%0 0 PIOH UO
%0 0 SNPIBAD
%16 0l ~ ssaiboidu)
%0 0 P8DIS JON
% INROD SNLVIS
% SNLVIS JISVYL

sal|Iop] - pIpoqyspq j23foid I3a

25



|
?li San Benito Health Care District

A Public Agency

> Haze
HOWkins 911 Sunset Drive

MEMORIAL HOSPITAL Hollister, CA 95023-5695

SKILLED NURSING FACILITIES (831) 637-5711
HOME HEALTH AGENCY

San Benito Health Care District

December 15, 2025

CFO Financial Summary for the District Board:

For the month ending November 30, 2025, the District’s Net Surplus (Loss) is $1‘,162,543 compared to a
budgeted Surplus (Loss) of $473,313. The District exceeded the budget for the month by $689,230.

YTD as of November 30, 2025, the District’s Net Surplus (Loss) is $4,995,137 compared to a budgeted
Surplus (Loss) of $5,448,446. The District is under budget YTD by $453,309.

Acute discharges were 122 for the month, under budget by 26 discharges, 18%. The ADC was 12.63
compared to a budget of 13.91. The ALOS was 3.11. The acute I/P gross revenue exceeded the budget
by $150,512 or 2% while O/P services gross revenue exceeded the budget by $1.925 million or 7%.
ER I/P visits were 110 and ER O/P visits were under budget by 71 visits or 3%. The RHCs & Specialty
Clinics treated 3,334 (includes 437 visits at the Diabetes Clinic) and 1,088 visits respectively.

Other Operating revenue exceeded budget by $1,059,612 due mainly to:

1) $235,200 from CCAH for a Hospital Quality Incentive.
2) Additional accruals for various supplemental payments.

Operating Expenses exceeded budget by $136,105 due mainly to: overages in Employee Benefits of

$262,324 from health insurance costs, Registry of $121,306 partially offset by Salaries & Wages
Expense reductions of $145,831.

Non-operating Revenue was exceeded the budget by $51,810 due to the timing of donations from the
Foundation.

The SNFs ADC was 85.97 for the month. The Net Surplus (Loss) is $129,634 compared to a budget of
$85,938. YTD, the Net Surplus (Loss) is $674,388 exceeding the budget by $163,583.

We bring you... Health, Compassion & Innovation




€6T°'%90'9 (91) (Z209'2LS) 998°625°€ ¥9Z'LS6°'T 6Z1°690'1 L TZY'LEY L6568 8T0°LZL (SSOT) ZFWODNI ONILYNIJO LaAN
¥.0°'828°'29 0 (062°'L91) 629°'G62°69 6EE'BZT'69 8%L'L69 2T z L81°LET TSL009'€T €6 'LEB'ET SASNIAXd TYLOL
s5L's52'2 (6) (991'552) 6YL LTE T €85°299°'C T6Z'9%% (€) (88€°€T) 60L'¥¥S TZETES ¥AHLO
zot‘zez (8) (tve ‘L) LBL'86 9%8°06 ¥L0'6SC (8L) (Log’'sT) S¥9°6T 8EE' Y LSAUALNT
g8€°'96S'1 9 8¥9°L6 ST0'9LS'T €99°'€L9°T 890 '61¢ ot L9 1 £0T°'STE SL8'9vE LJOWY ¥ NOILVIDEVdEA
186 'S9¢L z L0§'9T SLL'8%8 z82'598 98T '8€T (6) (9TL'%1) S5L'69T 6€0'SST TYINZA
TYS'TLS'9 () (989°00T) €LL'0BL'9 £L80'089°9 09Z'L8Z'T (L) (6%0'€6) ¥6% '6EE'T SYE9VZ T SZDIAYES QISYHOUN
00T'162'S (1) (850 '€9) €9Z2'T¥¥’9 S0Z’'6LE'D ¥06°0L0°'T (8) (928 'T0T) 0L6°¥LZ’T VYT ELT'T 5911440S
9Th L99'L 8 v9L €9 ovs '€z '8 ¥0E'L98'8 68E'TEV'T 9 0TT'€0T v6S vP9 ‘T YOL LYVL'T 5384 TYNOISSII0Nd
¥¥2'2€6 0T (2) (9€2'TET) 806°202'2T TLY'TLE'TT 818'891°T 9T 250 °'SBE 6ZE‘2SE’T IBE'LEL'T SLIJANSE SHACTIWI
S¥0°95S'T [44 ZTL'LLS T6°'929°2 ¥¥9'v02’¢€ 960°¥¥S Lz £99°'TPT ¥8€'SZS L¥0'L99 AALSTOEA
205’806 VT (€) (E¥8'¥98) L68'LLS'LZ ¥S0‘€EL'9T €99'Z€0'S (€£) (¥20'98T) 899'¥I¥'S ¥¥9'822°S SFOYM ¥ SITAVIVS
:SASNZAXE ONILYYIJO
L92'268'89 (§9] (€68 '6EL) S6v 'S8 ZL z09°580°ZL LLBTILET 9 L09'¥L8 8YE'069 €T G56 %95 'v1 FONFATY ONILYYHdO LEN
60 'SS9°€E oL 2Z6°'650°'¥ L€ZT'6Z8°S 651°688°6 S00°STT'T £6 Z19°650'T ELL'SET'T SBE'GE6T’'T IONFAHE ONILVIEdO FIHLO
§58'9€2°S9 (L) (STB'66L'F) 852 '966'99 £¥¥°96T°29 €Ls’Ly9’et (2) (¥00'58T) SLS'¥55°2T TL5'69€°2T SONIATY INAILVE LIN
v02'ZET 62T ¥ 0EB'LYT'S 896 '¥20 '9¢€T 86L°CTLT TVT LS58°85L°¥T 6 899°z62'2 88€'LSE'ST 950°059°'LZ IONIATA WOdd SNOILONAEA TYLOL
0 695 ¥ZT 0 695 °vZT 0 (zL8'9) 0 (2L8°9) MOTTY TYALOWALNOD SAId\LSITYLIISOH
[34 204 ¢ Ak x4 v ¥0Z 6L0'T S0L’'LST %2 606 ‘9€E'ST L9€°'955 ¥ ¥l T8E'EEY 180°LTS'¥ Z9%'0ST'S SLNIWLSACAY ANY STYALOVILINOD N¥IHIO
88€ /951 ¥9 THT'00T 296 98T €0T'LSZ 818’11 16T L80 %Y LIZ'62 ¥0E €L FAYD ALIAYHD
¥86'v18°¢€ (0g) (9TL'625'T) vSZ'T60°S 6€5'195 '€ 80% 198 9 199°0% £9€°596 ¥20°920°'T ISNZdXd 1g3d avg
¥E9'Z66'6Y S LT9'SLY'2 79z '198°1S 6L8'9EE’PS 9TT’'99T 0T TT LTP'8S0°T L9%'859°6 ¥88°9TL 0T SEONYMOTTY TUNLOVILNOD TYD-ITEW
9LL'950°2S S ST0'868°'C S8L LS9 'PS 008°555°LS L¥T’E9T 6 S $66'20S 09Z'L8T 0T S$5C'069°0T SHONYMOTTY TYLOVULNOD F¥YIIAIW
CANNIASE WO¥E SNOLIONAHEd
290°'69¥% 96T 0 ST0'8%E 9z7'120'€02Z T¥Z'69€'€0Z 6TL 90%‘LE 9 ¥99'L0T°2 €96 116 ‘LE LZ9'6T0°0% ANNIASA INIILVd SSO0¥D TYIOL
€E9'0FPL PPT T LY¥S'908 BEZ'ZT9'€ST S8L'8TY VST 906 '060 '82 L S16'626°T 6%y '8L9'8C ¥96 ‘€09 '0€ INNIATY INSILVALNO SSOND TYIOL
0 ¥18°'29S 0 ¥18°29S 0 £91°90T 0 €91°90T ANNIATE d\O SAId\ILSITYLIdSOH
€E9'00L PPT [} ZEL'EVT g€C'2T9 ‘€ST 0L6°'558°€ST 906 06082 9 ZSE'6T8°T 6vY'8L9 8T 108°L6¥ 0¢E FNNIATY INFIIVALNO XAVITIONY
6TV '8ZL 60 (1) (1€5'85%) 886 ‘80¥ ‘6% LSY'056°8Y £ZB'STE’6 z 6b1 281 YIS 'EET'6 €99°GT¥'6 FNNFATY INIILYANI SSO¥D TYLOL
0 £61'L88 0 €6T°'L88 0 685 '¥HT 0 685 ¥¥T HNNFAZY d\I SAZJ\LSITYIIdSOH
9Iv¥'5L0 ‘22 (1IT) (veL'6ze T} 020'vL6 1T 98Z'¥¥9 61 600°Z¥C’'Y (¥) (0¥€°'99T) €16 80T ¥ ELS'ZV6'E ANNIASY INEILVANI XAVTTIONY
0TE’'008'6 € S¥8'€0€ 006LZ€ 0T SYETES 0T 0S1°926'T T LBL'TT 000°'sz0‘2 LBL'9%0'Z ANNIAZY INIINOY ANS
$L9°ZSB LT 4 S91'089 89V LOT LT €E9'LBL LT $39°LYT'E 9 €11 281 T09'660 € YIL'TI8Z'E HNANIASY ENILOOYW ALOOY
CEONIATY INFILVE SSO¥D
¥Z/0€/TT EONVINVA FONVINVA SZ/0E/TT szZ/0€/1T ¥Z/0E/1T AONVIAVA EONVINVA SZ/0E/TT SZ/0E/TT
WX dorud LEDUEd DIN/S0d rEoand ™NOLOY ¥X HOIUd nEoyde HEAN/SOd lg9ang TVALOV
R LR L L EE LT EELEE R LIVE-OL-YVHK- -~ ===-m========-n seececoean] Jommmmmm e smmeses-oeoeo o -HINON INSYUAD-=--======v-=r--reconomccnecco
SZ/0€/TT GOI¥Ad ¥Od
€Z066 ¥D ‘WALSITIOH
GEANIEROD - TVIISOR IVINOKEW SNIMNNVH TIZVH

T 3ovd

WIOVIIAS ©13sh
STTT ® $T/ST/TT :@3ed

27




$6E°TT 2(LE"L) 3(55°0) 180 L 3€6°9 $22°0T $98°0€T L Y4281 19V € 386°¢L NIDYYW (SSOT) SNIduNS L8N
20878 $(9€°6T) $(¥L°0) 158" ¥ 301" ¥ VL L 1¥9°299 e Y $59°0 166" ¥ NIONYW ONILY¥EdO
$TT €T $(LY %) (0% 0) 186°8 185°8 156" 1T $€0°26 1597 % 350°S 20L°6 NIDYYW ¥ared
999'0€0°'6 $ %(vp°S) (888'SSE) §  TLI'BES’9 $  €BZ'ZBT'9 $  0OT'E¥Y'T § %62 %0T $96'0ZL 857 '169 (344544 20 S vargd
SEV'6¥8 ‘L (8) (60€'€SY) 9V '8V ’S LET'S66 Y 660°L0%'T 9T 0€Z'689 ETEELY E€¥SZ9T'T (SSOT) Sn1ddns Lan
Zyz's8L’T 9 €62'611 08S'8T6°'T ELB'LED'T 0L6 ' T¥E ¥ 018°1S 9TL'€8E 926 'SEY (2SN3dXT) /ENNIATY ONILWYEJO-NON TYLIOL
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 SNOLLOEININGD NOILYNOEYTII0D
€%L'6 13 L60°¢E sz1'8 et v96 Tt LT sz9't 96L°T HWOONI INIWLSHANI
(0T0'6ET) 0 9zT (OTL ETT) (¥8% '€TT) (L9L’Le) 0 (z9) (zve'22) (vog‘zZ) ASNIdXE ¥J0-NON JdTHIO
£V8'6L (s) (0g6'€) 56618 590 8L 81891 (6) (ees'T) 66€'9T 998 %1 ANNIATY ¥FII0-NON JFHIO
(LO¥'SZE) 0 z (0L5°50€) (895 '50¢€) (180°'59) 0 0 (¥TT'19) (PTT°19) ISNIAXI\ENNTATY INI ANOH 0D
YLS6L8 0 (T} 0LS'S06 89S '506 S16°'SLT 0 0 YIT 18T PIT 18T SAXYL dOJ¥d aNO€E 0D
0t9°'502°'1 0 0 oLT'ZHT'T oLt ‘zve't [44 408 14 0 0 VEV‘BYT YEY'8YZ SNNFAZY XYI ALIFJO¥d
688 °'¥L 0zt 006611 000'00T 006 '612 0 99z ¥EZ'ES 00002 vET'EL SNOTLYNOQ
: ISNAIXI\BNNSAZY ONILVEEI0-NON
vz/0€/11 SONVINVA FONVINVA sz/0E/1T sz/0€/TT ¥Z/0€/TT FONVINVA SONVINVA SZ/0€/TT sz/o0e/1t
WX YOINd INEOUI OAN/504 1a9a08 IVALOV WX HOIHL INZOAIS DEN/S0d Lg0ang TEOLOY

e emeeeseceiececeo oo HIVA-OL-UVEA- -

ST/0€/TT QOINHA WO

€2066 VO

‘¥RISITION

TEANIEROD - "INLI4SOH TVINOWEW SNIMNVH THZVH

advd

YINVTIIAS :I9s(
SITT @ §g/ST/TT :83eq

28




0€Z'L¥9'S (£2) (58T '9€L) T20'08T’€ 9EBEYY ‘T 826216 959°T SZL'E6S 158°S¢€ 9L5°629 (SSOT) HWOONI ONILVIEGO LAN
8L9°¥9S €S (9] (zL1'zee) 698°Z8¥'6S L69°0TZ 65 T6L'LTE'OT 1 SOT'9€T z69°199 1T L6L'LBL'TT SASNA4XE TYLOL
690'9S6'T (0T} (L09°€52) ¥61°'88S°Z 886 °'¥EE’Z 0%6‘Z8¢E 0 vEZ'T 889 'TLY zZH'TLY WIHLO
z01’'z82 (8) (Tv6'L) L8L'86 9%8'06 ¥L0°6ST (8L) (L0E'ST) SP9 6T 8EE’D LSHIELNI
9vT’Z0V ‘T L 669°'€6 0T8’08€’T 605 VLY'T €25°182 Tt 69L'0¢€ z91'9LZ T€6'90€ LAOWY 3 NOLLWIDANAIA
ZSE'LSL () (ZEE'€E) SL6 908 €¥9'€LL €TT'SET (11) (905°8T) 6€8'19T EEEEVT TYLNAE
LYY'60T'9 (1) (62L°'28) 9%5'992'9 LIB'€EBT'9 L59°zZT 1 (8) (695'26) 885°8€Z'T ¥Z0'9VT'T SADIANES AESYHOUNd
86T 'ST8' ¥ (€) (TS0 '6%1) LLY'SS6’S 929°908°S LLT'686 (6) (ozL 01T TET'6LT'T T1S'890°'T SAITdANS
99€ ‘9S9°L 8 ¥TZ'SH9 0%0'112°8 ¥52'958°'8 6LT'62%'T 9 00%€0T ¥60°2v9°T ¥6p'SHL'T S84 TYNOISSHIONd
060°99% '8 (v) (€91 '89¢) ZLE'989°6 60Z'81E'6 680°L89°T s vze'z9z £29°858°1 L¥6'02T'C SLIJANEE FTAOTIWI
€LS'PIE'T 1z vEZ'86Y 008°'08€°2 ¥E0'6L8°T €60°66% 9z 90¢'TZT 09T '9LY 99% ' L6S ANLSIOTE
GEE'S08'6T (€) (L6Y'%T9) 899°L0T'TT TLT'E6Y'TZ LEGE'TED ' (€) (TE8'SPT) 299 LEE'Y ZEB'TET ¥ SIOYM ¥ SEIAVTIVS
:SESNIIXE ONILWYILO
80611265 (2) (8S€'800°'T) 068°299'29 €€S'¥53'T9 6TL'0€8°TT 9 0€8'6ZL E¥S'L69 T ELE‘LZY'TT SNNFAZY ONILVYEdO ALODY LIN
60¥‘SS9°€ oL 226°650'% LEZ'628'S 651°688°6 S00°STT'T €6 ZT19°650'T ELL'SET'T SBE'S6T'T SNNFAATY ONILVYALO ¥HHLO
66¥%'955'5S (6) (082'890°S) €59°€€8°'9S E€LE'SIL'TIS STL'STL 0T (£) (z8L'62€) 0LL'195'0T 886 'TE€Z'0T SONIATE INSIIVd SL0OY LEN
z56°56€°L2T v ¥56°500°S SE0'6LEEET 686 '¥86 'BET 89%'0%E ' vC 0T 608°50¥%°2 Z9€'956 ' ¥Z TLT'29E'Le ANNIAZE WOdd SNOILONAYA ILNOV TYIOL
0 695 ¥z 0 696 2T 0 (zL8'9) 0 (zL8'9) MOTTY TYALOVELNOD SAEd\LSITYIIdSOH
£€90°'SS0 €T S 8LG'SPT'T 059°'¥80°'¥Z gzz'ogz’se 985S €IS ‘¥ T 69%'LE9 [2983:3 28 4 819'0ZT'S SINAWLSACaY ANY STYALOVIINOD ¥IHLO
88€°9ST z9 LIT'LE Z96'9ST 6L0°%ST 81811 151 L8O ¥V L1Z'62 POE'EL FUYO ALIYVHO
ZZ0'€S8'¢E (1€) (€05'S55' 1) ¥SZ'990°S ZSL'0TS'E T0%°298 € 968 ‘LT €9€°096 65T°'886 dSNZdX" LE3d AV
TEE9TS 60 S 0SL'8LE'T 200 ¥9€°1S TSL'TPLES $6.'980°0T €T T6L°502°T §96'095'6 95L°99L°01 SEONYMOTTY TYALOVELNOD TWD-IAEK
LPT'ST8'0G S [422814: 284 LIT'LOE'ES 60922195 §98'698°'8 S eV LEY 899°2Z6'6 90T’'0Z% 01 SIINYMOTTY TYALOVEINGD F¥VIIATW
TELODY ANNEASY WO¥d SNOILONAEQ
0S¥ 256’281 0 (9z€'29) 889°Z18°061 TIE'0SL 06T €81'950 'SE 9 Lz0'9L0’e TET'BTS'SE 6ST ¥65°LE ANNIATA INHILYd FLADY SSO¥D TYIOL
£€9°0%L VYT T L¥S'908 8ET'TI9'EST SBLBTY¥ ¥ST 906 '060 ‘82 L STS°'SZ6'T 6v¥°'8L9°8T 96 °'€09°0€ HNNZATY LNZILY4LOO SSOUD TYIOL
0 ¥I8'29S 0 ¥18°29S 0 €97°'901 0 €9T°90T SONEATE d\O LSITYLIASOH
€E9 0L BV 0 ZEL'EVT 8EZ'TI9EST 0L6'S58°€ST 906 ‘06082 9 2SE'6TB'T 6vv'8L9 '8 108'L6V0€E FONTATY INIILVALNO A¥YTITIONY
818 112 '8¢ (2) (zL8'898) 0S¥ 00T LE 8LS'TEE'9€ 9LZ°596'9 z ZTS'0ST £89°6€8°9 S6T 0669 INNFATY INFILVANI SSO¥H TYLOL
0 €6T'L88 ¢} €6T'L88 Q 685 '¥¥T 0 68G T INNIATY d\I LSITYLIdSOH
Y¥I'65€'02 [$49] (0EZ'9€%'2) 286°260°'02 ZSL'959 LT EL9°LT8'E (s) (06T'9LT) 780 '0¥L'E 268'€95°'¢€ FNNIAZTY INIILYANI AAVTTIONY
¥L9°'2S8 LT v S91°089 89%'LOT LT €E9'LBL LT ¥99°LYT € 9 £TT'Z8T 109'660°¢E pIL'TI8Z'E ANNIATY ENILNOY
TEANZAZN INJILYd SSO¥D
¥Z/0€/1T HONVINVA SONVINVA SZT/0€/TT SZ/0€/TT ¥Z/0€/11 FDNVIGVA FONVIEVA SZT/0E/TT SZT/0E/TT
¥A WOIV4 INIOWRA ©IN/50d 15008 TVALOY X JOINd INZOUId 9EN/504 rasang TYALOV
S ELVA-OL-UVEA- - - = -c--ssesessceanocesannnan| |==seeesececncccaccccnncaaac~HINOR INSYUND--~==-c=cessscvomuommnmnnnanann

SZ/0€/1T QOI¥Ed WO
€206 VO ‘WALSITIOH
TVLIASOH TVINOWEW SRIMNVE TaZVHE

ALITIOVd EIOADV -

T govd

YAOVIIQS 3980
STIT ® SZ/ST/TT :°3eq

29




€L5'282 'L (e1) (268'919) TP 'LEE' Y 6vL'0TE'Y 816°'¥22'T L9T ¥ES'SH9 SLE'LBE 606°2€0'T (5507) SNTI¥NS LAN
€vE'SE9'T (2 £€62'6T1 029°LSL’T £16°9L8'T 066 '1TTE ST 0T8 TS ¥Z5'TsE YEE'E0Y (ESNAdXE) /4NNIATY DONILVYEJO-NON TYIOL
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 SNOILAEIYLNOD NOILYHOEYTI0D
EPL'6 8€ L60'E szT's zze' 1t ¥96 1T Lt 529°1 96L°T HWOONI LNSWLSHANI
(690'80T) 0 922 (0L¥'88) (¥¥z'88) (8L5°'12) 0 (29} (¥69°LT) (9sL’eLn) ISNIdXd YAJO-NON HIHLO
£¥8 6L (s) (0£6'€) $66°'18 $90'8¢L 818°'9T (6) (€€S°T) 66€ 9T 998 ‘¥ FANIAZY ¥IJO-NON ¥IHLO
(LOY'SZE) 0 z (0LS5°50¢€) (895 '50€) (180°'59) 0 0 (yTT'T9) (¥TT'T9) ISNEdXE\INANIATY INI ANOE 09
¥LS'6L8 0 (2) 0LS'S06 895’506 ST6'SLT 0 0 $TT°18T YIT'T8T SEXYL dO¥d aNOg 0D
0LL'9Z0°T 0 0 0L6'650'T 0L6°SS0°T ¥56 02 0 0 v6T 112 6T 11T FONIATY XYL AL¥EIONd
688 VL 0ZT 006 61T 000°00T 006’612 0 992 PEZ'ES 00002 YET'EL SNOTLIYNOA
$ASNAIXE\FONIAZY ONILVYHJO-NON
vz/0€/1T FONVINVA FONVINVA sz/o0€/tt sz/oe/tt ¥Z/0€/11 SONVINVA HONVIVVA SZ/0E/TT sz/0€/TT
WA HOING INEDUR DIN/50d LEsang TNOIOV ¥R ¥OI¥d INEDOWES oIAN/s04 1gsand TEALON
semecsnceccanno- B R EEE LT T | |=emceaeccecceccaecnccca e -~ HINOR INSHHAD === ===~

SZ/0€/1T QOIYEd ¥Od
€Z0§6 VO ‘HALSITIOH

ALITIOVA EIOOV - TVLILSOHR TVINONAEW SNIANVH TEZVH

¢ 3ovd

wANYTIAS I9sn
STTT @ §Z/St/eZT :93eq

30



31

z98'99S 143 €85 '€9T S08 0TS 8BE'¥LY T8T'Z8T 1s 969 '€V 8€6°S8 $€9'621 (§507) sSN14¥NS 1IN
668°6¥%T 0 0 096091 096 '09T 08662 0 0 z6T'Z¢ T6T'ZE {ISNEIXE) /SNNIATI ONILVEAJO-NON TYLIOL
(T¥6'0€) 0 0 (ovz‘'sz) (ovz‘'se) (881°'9) 0 0 (8%0°'S) (8¥0'S) dSNEdXE ¥4JO-NON ¥HHLIO
0v8 ‘081 0 0 00z '98T 00Z ‘98T 891'9¢ 0 0 0bZ'LE 0bZ ‘LE FONFAZY XYL AL¥IJ0¥d
0 0 0 o 0 0 0 o 0 [ SNOILYNOQ
:ASNBAXE\ENNIAFY ONILVNAJO-NON
£€96°'91¥ LY €85 ‘€91 S¥8'6VE 8TV €15 T0T'CST 18 969 °¢t¥ 9¥L'ES vy L6 {SSOT) FWOONI ONILVYEJO LEN
S6€'E92°6 It z88'%0T 09L°218'6 ZH9'LTI6 6 LS6'6LL'T S z80'T0T 650'6€6°T THT 080T SISNEdXd TYLOL
589°662 (1) (095'T) SS5'6Z¢€ 566'L2€ TSE'€E9 (02) (229'¥1) TZ0'€EL 66€'8S YIHLO
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 LSEYLINT
ZvZ'¥6T z 6¥6°¢€ S0Z’G6T ¥ST 66T SPS'LE z €06 V0 '6€ V6 '6¢€ NOILVIDS¥JAa
629°'8 61T 6£8°6% 008°T¥ 6€9°16 ¥90°€ 8¥ 06L'€ 9T6 ‘L 90L°1IT TYINAY
$60'€9% (%) (L56°LT) LZT' YIS 0LZ'96% £09°'%9 (1) (58%) 906 00T TZ%'00T SEOIAYES QASVYHOANG
T06'SLY 8T €66'G8 985°'98% 6L5'ZLS LzL'1e 6 v68°'8 6EL'SE €€9 %01 S911ddns
050°TT (1) (0s%'1T) 005’2t 0S0'TT ote'e (zT) (062) 005°Z 0tTz’C SFFId TYNOISSHIONd
¥ST'99%°2 S LZ6'9ET 9€5°915°Z €9%'€S9'C 0EL'18Y sz 8ZL'221 90L"€E6¥ YEV'9TI SLIJENTE FIROTIWE
(42284 24 43 88%'6L zTT'9vZ 019 '5Z¢E z00'SH 184 LSE'0Z ¥zZT'6Y 18569 XALSIOIN
L9T'€0T’S () (9%€'0€2) 6ZZ'0LY’S €88 '6€2°'S 9ZL'000°T (%) (¥6T°0¥) 900°LL0°T ZI8°9€0'T SHOWYM 3 SHTAVIYS
:SESNIIXE ONILYIIJO
6SE'089°6 € S$9% 892 §09'291°0T 0L0'TEY 0T 8ST1'2¢€6'T L 8LL BYT S08°266°T €85 LET'T ANNIAZE ONILWYEAO ANS L3N
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 ANNIFAZY ONILVNEdO dFTHLO
6SE'089°6 € S9% ‘892 50929101 0L0’TEY'OT BST'ZE6'T L 8LL YT 508'266°T €8S LET'Z dNNEAZY INHILYd 4NS 13N
€S2°'9€8°T L 9.8 THT £E6°5¥0°T 608°LBT T 68E'81¥ (82) (TPT €1T) 920 '10¥ 988182 ANNFATY WO¥d SNOILONAAd &NS TYIOL
09€'9ST (8€) (¥LE'99) SS0'ELT 189 ‘90T ZBL'TY (z1) (880'%) TEE'EE ¥¥8 62 SINEWLSACAY ONY STYALOVALNCD ¥HHLO
0 ¥z0'€ 0 ¥20°¢€ 0 0 0 0 0 YYD ALIAVHD
(8€£0°8E) €01 L8L'se 000°S2Z L8L’0S (£66) SS9 S9L°ZE 000°S S9L"LE ISNHdXE 183a ave
(430 TA4 0z L98°'96 09z 'L6Y LZT'%6S zTTE'6L (151) (bre'Lwl) 206'L6 (zL8'6¥) SEONVMOTTY TYALOVILNOD TYO-IAEW
629°'T%2'1 9 TLs'es 819°0S€°T 06T 'E€EY'T 6Lz'L6T z LSS'S 265792 69T'0LZ SHONYMOTTY TYNLOVELNOD BAYDIAZW
tANS EONIATY WO¥d SNOIIONAEA
2T2'91S 1T € TYE'OTY 8€£S'802°'2T 6L8°819°21 LYS'0SE’Z T LEY'TE 1€8'€6€E°Z 89%'SZ¥ ‘2 INNIATY INZFILYd dNS SSO¥D TYIOL
ZOE'9TL T 9 96% 901 8€0'TB8'T PES’LB6'T LEE'VTY € 058'6 1€8'89¢€ 189 '8LE ANNIAZA ANS ATVITIONY
0T€'008'6 € 5%8'€0€ 005°LZE'0T SYE'TES'OT 0ST'326°T T LBL'TT 000°520°2 L8L'9%0°T IONIAZA ANS ENILOOY
SENNAAZY INSILYd 4NS SSO¥D
vz/0€/11 FONVINVA SONVIdVA sz/0€/1t SZ/0€/1T ¥Z/0€/11 HONVINVA FONVINVA sz/0e/TT S§ZT/0€E/TT
¥R dOINd INSOuEd DEN/S0d l2sang INOIOV ¥X YOIdd INZOWEd DEN/S04d lasang TYOLOY

cesecececco o -@INA-OL-UVEK-~-----~~=<

[=-smsesmees et ee o o “HINON INENHUAD---~-=-=---

§Z/0€/11 4OI¥Ed ¥O&
YO ‘¥ILSITIOR
SEILITIOVA ONISHON JETIINS SNINNVH TIZVH

T 39v¥d

VINVTIIAS 198
PIIT ® SZ/ST/ZT :93eq




Date: 12/15/25 @ 1114
User: SDILAURA

HAZEL HAWKINS MEMORIAL HOSPITAL
HOLLISTER, CA

For the month ended 11/306/25

CURR MONTH PRIOR MONTH POS/NEG PERCENTAGE PRIOR YR
11/30/25 10/31/25 VARIANCE VARIANCE 06/30/25
CURRENT ASSETS
CASH & CASH EQUIVALENT 40,372,718 43,724,439 (3,351,720) (8) 46,670,217
PATIENT ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE 66,292, 346 63,284,211 3,008,135 S 66,556,290
BAD DEBT ALLOWANCE (6,054,999) (5,764,801) (290,198) S (7,062,672)
CONTRACTUAL RESERVES (39,268,554) (38,100,660) (1,167,894) 3 (40,404,377
OTHER RECEIVABLES 12,269,905 8,541,189 3,728,717 44 4,952,401
INVENTORIES 5,011,606 5,014,637 (3,031) 0 4,981,471
PREPAID EXPENSES 2,614,086 2,579,749 34,337 1 2,599,584
DUE TO\FROM THIRD PARTIES (181,860) (181,860) 0 0 (181, 860)
TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS 81,055,250 79,096,904 1,858,347 3 78,111,054

ASSETS WHOSE USE IS LIMITED
BOARD DESIGNATED FUNDS

TOTAL LIMITED USE ASSETS
PROPERTY, PLANT, AND EQUIPMENT
LAND & LAND IMPROVEMENTS

BLDGS & BLDG IMPROVEMENTS
EQUIPMENT

CONSTRUCTION IN PROGRESS

GROSS PROPERTY, PLANT, AND EQUIPMENT
ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION

NET PROPERTY, PLANT, AND EQUIPMENT
OTHER ASSETS
UNAMORTIZED LOAN COSTS

PENSION DEFERRED OUTFLOWS NET

TOTAL OTHER ASSETS

TOTAL UNRESTRICTED ASSETS

RESTRICTED ASSETS

TOTAL ASSETS

6,599,270 6,610,076 (10, 8086) 0 5,666,884
6,599,270 6,610,076 (10,8086) 0 5,666,884
3,370,474 3,370,474 0 0 3,370,474
100,098,374 100,098,374 0 0 100,098,374
47,713,426 47,478,522 234,904 1 46,216,122
5,757,515 5,174,428 583,087 11 4,324,809
156,939,789 156,121,798 817,991 1 154,009,779
(100,141,391) (99,779,604) (361,787) 0 (98,393, 920)
56,798,397 56,342,193 456,204 1 55,615, 859

298,507 304,248 (5,742) (2) 327,215
5,277,892 5,277,892 0 0 5,277,892
5,576,399 5,582,140 (5,742} 0 5,605,107

150,029,316 147,631,313 2,398,003 2 144,998,904

128,295 128,244 51 0 127,208

150,157,611 147,759,557 2,398,054 2 145,126,112

32




Date: 12/15/25 @ 1114 PAGE 2
User: SDILAURA

HAZEL HAWKINS MEMORIAL HOSPITAL
HOLLISTER, CA
For the month ended 11/30/25

CURR MONTH PRIOR MONTH POS/NEG PERCENTAGE PRIOR YR
11/30/25 10/31/25 VARIANCE VARIANCE 06/30/25

CURRENT LIABILITIES
ACCOUNTS PAYABLE 7,398,653 6,720,355 (678,299} 10 6,221,841
ACCRUED PAYROLL 3,524,903 3,040,141 (484,762) 16 3,467,229
ACCRUED PAYROLL TAXES 183,910 189,868 5,957 (3) 257,552
ACCRUED BENEFITS 4,412,409 4,444,906 32,497 (1} 5,074,320
OTHER ACCRUED EXPENSES 43,406 80,470 37,064 (46) 80,907
PATIENT REFUNDS PAYABLE 1,310 1,310 0 0 1,310
DUE TO\FROM THIRD PARTIES 4,339,021 4,338,689 (332) 0 5,056,186
OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES 1,295,272 1,112,204 {183,068) 17 777,080
TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES 21,198,884 19,927,342 (1,270,942) 6 20,936,425
LONG-TERM DEBT
LEASES PAYABLE 4,764,576 4,771,539 6,963 0 4,799,273
BONDS PAYABLE 28,392,281 28,420,801 28,520 ¢ 28,534,881
TOTAL LONG TERM DEBT 33,156,857 33,192,339 35,483 0 33,334,154
OTHER LONG-TERM LIABILITIES
DEFERRED REVENUE 0 0 0 0 0
LONG-TERM PENSION LIABILITY 25,888,121 25,888,121 0 0 25,888,121
TOTAL OTHER LONG-TERM LIABILITIES 25,888,121 25,888,121 0 0 25,888,121
TOTAL LIABILITIES 80,243,861 79,008,402 (1,235,460) 2 80,158,700
NET ASSETS:
UNRESTRICTED FUND BALANCE 64,915,019 64,915,019 0 0 64,817,839
RESTRICTED FUND BALANCE 100,773 100,722 (51} 0 149,573
NET REVENUE/ (EXPENSES) 4,897,957 3,735,414 (1,162,543) 31 0
TOTAL NET ASSETS 69,913,749 68,751,155 (1,162,594) 2 64,967,412
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS 150,157,611 147,759,557 (2,398,054) 2 145,126,112

33




FN

Hazel Hawkins

MEMORIAL HOSPITAL San Benito Health Care District
Hazel Hawkins Memorial Hospital
NOVEMBER 2025
Description MTD Budget MTD Actual YTD Actual YTD Budget FYE Budget
Average Daily Census - Acute 13.91 12.63 13.86 14.76 15.00
Average Daily Census - SNF 90.00 85.97 87.74 90.00 90.00
Acute Length of Stay 2.81 2.80 2.80
ER Visits:
Inpatient 125 667 1,638
Outpatient 2,214 10,714 27,053
Total 2,339 11,381 28,691
Days in Accounts Receivable 50.0 50.7 50.7 50.0 50.0
Productive Full-Time Equivalents 575.17 m 575.17 575.17
Net Patient Revenue 12,554,575 12,369,571 62,196,443 66,996,258 157,730,532
Payment-to-Charge Ratio 33.1% 30.9% 30.6% 33.0% 32.4%
Medicare Traditional Payor Mix 28.57% 29.25% 29.53% 28.71%
Commercial Payor Mix 23.68% 22.09% 22.96% 22.51% 23.36%
Bad Debt % of Gross Revenue 2.50% 2.57% 2.50% 2.53%
EBIDA 691,258 1,412,223 6,182,283 6,538,171 13,769,729
EBIDA % 5.05% 9.70% 8.58% 8.98% 7.98%
Operating Margin 0.65% 4.85% 3.79%
Salaries, Wages, Registry & Benefits %:
by Net Operating Revenue 60.57% 58.23% 59.06%
by Total Operating Expense 60.97% 61.20% 61.39%
Bond Covenants:
Debt Service Ratio - 1.25 4.43 10.48 7.36
Current Ratio - 1.50 2.00 2.00 2.00
Days Cash on hand - 30.00 87.82 87.82 110.00
el O cedaed darqe
Within 10% of Target
O 0

34



aoueLeA 89.'281'L$

pueH uo yse) payadpng 056'688'8¢$

[A 414

0ze'Lvks

pueH uo yse) skeq jeuonesedo

ouisig sy uns o} Aep sad Js09

——— e ——
0$ 8LLTLE OVS gLL'TLE OvS
L12'0/9'9Y BEV'VZLEY
(66¢'L62°9) (rz2'15¢'e)
(9gg's¥) 0
(262°221) {egv'sg)
0 0
spuog TZ0Z Yim spuog €102 40 Bupueuyay 3 jedpuug 09 v10Z nooo_NvC Aowm_wNv
(269'v) {(€96'9)
{agg'cea'e) (v L08)
uoeziowy oLl'se Zvl's
spuog 1702 3 (S002) $107 - wawAed 3u| 73 (eddulg puog Awmm.Nnmv Oom.OF
0 0
(01L0°0£6'2) (166'21L8)
TN {8ce 229°€)
$pUOg anuUaA3Y TZOT 8 OD SO00T - | |BNUUY-IWIS 16L'8LS 890'€81L
(2Ll zee
0 0
{00g'2£) (¥90'2¢)
(v18'2.9) 90¢'ort
0 0
Z18'9LL°L 662'8.9
0 0
(e0s'vL) (ze€'pe)
(9c1'0g) 180'e
(so5°21€°L) (z1'zLe)
(zs5'628°1) (ev0'0SS'L)
LY LPLL 182'19¢
1£1'666'v$ £YS'ZOLLS
S20Z/0E/1 SZ0Z/0E/L)
3)eq-0l-3ea A quow
uaungy auny
SINIWWNOI MOTd HSVD

pouad Jo pu3 ‘ysed
pouad o buuuibeg ‘ysed
yses uj (aseasdaq)/asealsu| JaN

S13SSV A3L01¥1S3N NI 3SYIHIIAHISYIHOND)

saIARoY Bujoueuld Joj pasn yses 39N
Iqeit uwua) Buo Jeyio ul (asearaq)/aseasduy)
1qaq abebpopy puog ul (aseasaq)resealsu)
199 asea |eyde?) ul (aseaaq)/asesiou)
‘SIILIALLOY ONIONVNI4 WO¥d SMOT4 HSVYD

saniARoy Bugsaau) Aq pasn yseo 19N
s}assy JAYI0 Ul aseasnag/(aseasy))
S1assy as pajiwi] JaYI0 Ul aseasdaq/(asealou])
SJUBWISAAU| PUB yse)) aS() PajIT ul aseasda(]/(asealou)
yswdinb3 pue jued ‘Auadoid Jo aseyaind
‘SAILIAILLOY ONILSIANI WO¥d SMOT4 HSVD

:saIAnoY BugesadQ Aq papiaoad ysed jJaN
SaNjIger uaung JaylQ Ui (aseaidaq)/eseasdu|
S9INgeI/saoueApy Aued piiyL vl (sseaidaq)/aseasu|
a|qeAed spunyay jusaned ui (aseasa(])/aseasou|
sasuadxg panooy ) (3sea1d9()/asealoy|
slyauag pue [|0lhed panddy Ul (9se3103(Q)/aseasdu|
a|qehed SUBOT pue SSJON Ul (aseadaq)/aseasny|
ajgehed sjunodoy Ul (aseassa()/aseassu|
salyed pliy| woi4 anq ul aseasdaq/(aseaiou|)
sasuadx3 pled-ald ul aseasdaq/(aseasou))
SBLOJUSAU| Ul aseadaq/(asesou|)
$3|qBAI09Y JBYIQ Ul aseasdaq/(aseasou))
3|gBAIB0Y SIUNODY Judled 19N Ul asealda(/(aseasour)
uoneaidag
'saniApy Bunesado Aq papiroid
yseo JaN 0} 3Wodu| J3N 3)1ou0day 0} sjuawysnipy
(s$07) awody| JoN
‘SALIAILOV ONILYHYIJO WOYd SMOT4 HSYD

$Z0Z ‘0€ JoquieAoN Buipus yuow yyi4
V9 ‘191sHjoH
[epdsoH [elIowapy SUDMEY |[9ZeH

SMO]4 Yse?) JO JusLualels

35



LTTZ8Y'VT T6S'6TLVT sjuswAed (eauawd(ddns 19N
(980°060°€) i pied |10
029'98Z'TT Suipuad {2101
€02°7LS°LT 2L6'TEY'E paniasay [e10L
LITC8Y'PT 65'6TL YT s|eyoy pueio weidoud
L6L°85Y'8 PIEOTTY e103-qns 19|-uoN
'ST0Z/T0/0T 3ADRYD %09 Jo uondNpa’I T '¥'H  TST09Z'T 80€0YS SJHQ (HSQ) 21eys a1euoipodoadsiq [ed-IPan -
*3IUBIBYIP 1509 [ENIDE UO paseq - - - (4N/dq) Aupaeq Butsann “Ued 10uasiqg -
‘9707 1990190 78 ‘AInf ‘Aey ‘yoiep paidadxa siwd AUID 900°045°E SJHQ X1 (4VOH) pun4 adueinssy Aljenp |endsoH 6€Z 45 -
"QLA SuawAed 0D pIE B ‘PUT IST P,I3Y  €98°p¥T'E - SOHQ 1IA (4vDH) pung adueinssy AyjenD |endsoH 6€¢ 85 -
"§202 ‘0€ aunf Aq juawAed b Yy 99y 01 paradx3  T79'180°T S SOHQ 1IA (4¥DH) pund asueinssy Awenp |endsoH 6€Z 95 -
$20Z ‘v 'das 29y ££5690°T - SJHQ (4¥DH) pung adueunssy Auenp (exdsoH 6€Z 45 -
"HYDD 43pun Mou AJUNo) "S44 UO paseq "SZOT ‘LT YIUBIN UO PINIRISY  S8S'Z08'T - SJHQ SZ-¥Z0T AS ST6 AV -
‘sjudwied 133.a1Q :swesdosd Jaysues] [ejuawuianodiajul-uon
0ZE'EC0'9 8L7'609°0T |e303-qns 19|
‘T0T ‘6 42quid3q uo pred  (980°060°€) 2 PuIsIq awAeday ueol § Ad dID -
'Sz, AON/P0 ul JuawAed 123dx3 “80'THO'6LES ‘PUTT "Bny uo 1O papund  €58°0TL T60°cY9 SJHa ¥20Z AD (daHQ) siuswAed padaulq |eudsoH 11siq -
‘9207 Ae/idy Buipuny "33y ‘9Z0¢ JeW/qa4 anp 19| papuny €L5'6Y7'T HVYDD vZ0T AD 40§ JudiAed ,|euld, JUBWIINBS £ Ad dID -
'§Z0T 120 Ut p,I3Y ST YEY'006S ‘PUTT SNy uo 19| papuny ELS'6Y2'T HVDD 207 AD 10) JudwAed ,Widju), JUBWIMIS £ Ad dID -
"AelN UL 29y "UDJBIN UI GLETYEZS JO LDIUBS  Q9T'TIEY = SDHA €207 AD WUBWSI|1BS 9 Ad dID -
- Tv0'206°C HVDD #20Z ‘T€ "23Q Y8noiyl vZ0z ‘T uer aduey ajey -
'SZ0T Aenigaj ui paMaday  THT'6EET = wayuy €202 ‘T€ "22@ Y8no1y} €207 ‘T "uer dBuey ey -
"Aey Ui 29y (udy Ul €6T°290'TS 40 LOI Pled  9S0°L0Y'C 000'09T°C HVDD 5207 AD (4VDH) pung adueanssy Aujenp) |exdsoH 6€Z 85 -
"SZ0T aunr Aq juswied 1adx3 '9z0Z |Mdy anp 191 ZOE'SOE 005202 SJHQ 970Z/5207 A4S WIR| STOZ/¥Z0T A4S
"GOz aunf Aq Juawded 123dx3 9zZ0Z Ay aNp 191 S6L'6E 00520T SOHQA S70Z/¥20Z A4S JudWARY |BUIS HT0Z/EZ0C A4S
(HdQN) jendsoH a1gnd pateusisaq-uoN €1T gv -
‘uingas Suynrew 404 yiem pue wesdosd puny 03 PUISIQ s3AINbIY :swesdoud Jajsues) [ejuawuianodiazyy
:saloN STOZ AMd 9707 A4 10Aeq
leny |eny 9707 ‘0€ 2unr 3A4

ST0T ‘O€ J2qWI3AON JO Se QLA
sweidoid JuswAed jejuawajddng
1e3dsOH |eLIOWN SUDMEH |9ZBH

36



RESOLUTION NO. 2025 -07

A RESOLUTION FIXING THE TIMES AND DATES OF THE REGULAR
MEETINGS OF THE SAN BENITO HEALTH CARE DISTRICT
BOARD OF DIRECTORS, FROM FEBRUARY 26, 2026 THROUGH
JANUARY 28, 2027

WHEREAS, the practice of meeting once a month at five o’clock p.m. is valuable and
required according to SBHCD Bylaws Article VIIT A.

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
OF THE SAN BENITO HEALTH CARE DISTRICT that the times for holding
regular meetings of the Board of Directors for the San Benito Health Care District
beginning Thursday, February 26, 2026, be and the same are hereby fixed at five o’clock
p-m., on each of the following days, to wit:

The Board of Directors for the San Benito Health Care District
Has fixed 5:00 p.m. on each of the following days:

2026 2027
THURSDAY THURSDAY

February 26 January 28
March 26

April 23

May 28

June 25

July 23

August 27

September 24

October 22

November 19

December 17

37



San Benito Health Care District
Resolution No. 2025-07
December 18, 2025

Page 2

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that nothing in this resolution shall be construed as
preventing the calling of a special meeting of the Board of Directors of the San
Benito Health Care District at any time as provided by the Ralph M. Brown Act and
the laws of the State of California.

BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED that the special rule be, and hereby is adopted, to the
effect that when there is a complex question or matter embracing more than one
question before the Board for consideration, any board member, as a right, may
demand the division of such questions.

PASSED BY THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS this 18th day of December 2025, by
the following vote:

Johnson Pack Sanchez Angelo Gabriel

Ayes

Noes

Abstain

Absent

Board President
Board of Directors
San Benito Health Care District

RESOLUTION NO 2025-07



%

Hazel Hawkins

MEMORIAL HOSPITAL

Board of Directors Contract Review Worksheet

Professional Services Agreement for General Surgery Services with Mostafa Sadek, M.D.

Executive Summary:

Dr. Mostafa Sadek, MD, is a board-eligible general surgeon who began providing services with the
District in September 2025 as a locum tenens physician to support general surgery coverage needs.
He will be providing clinic-based general surgery services and emergency call coverage.
Administration is requesting approval of a Professional Services Agreement to continue services on
an ongoing basis.

Recommended Board Motion:
It is recommended that the Board approve a two-year professional services agreement with Dr.
Mostafa Sadek for general surgery surgical coverage with compensation set at $2,800 per shift.

Services Provided:
Clinic, hospital & emergency general surgery call coverage consisting of a minimum of 14 shifts per
month.

Agreement Terms:
Contract Effective Estimated Term clause
Term Date Annual Cost
2 1/5/2025 $470,400 60 days

39



PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT

This Professional Services Agreement (“Agreement”) is made, entered into and effective as of January 5, 2026
(“Effective Date™), by and between San Benito Health Care District, a local health care district organized and
operated pursuant to Division 23 of the California Health and Safety Code (“SBHCD”), and Mostafa Sadek,
M.D. (“Physician”).

RECITALS

SBHCD owns and operates Hazel Hawkins Memorial Hospital, a licensed general acute care facility
located at 911 Sunset Drive, Hollister, California (“Hospital”). Hospital provides inpatient and outpatient
services to residents of the San Benito Health Care District and surrounding communities which constitute
the Hospital’s service area (“Hospital Service Area”).

SBHCD owns and operates a rural health clinic as defined in Title 22, California Code of Regulations
section 51115.5 to provide services to patients in the Hospital Service Area (“Clinic”). Clinic operates
under the name “Hazel Hawkins Community Health Clinic.”

Physician is licensed to practice medicine in the State of California, is a member in good standing of the
medical staff of Hospital and is experienced and qualified to provide general surgery services.

Section 32129 of the California Health and Safety Code provides that a health care district may contract
with a Physician to render professional health services in order to ensure that adequate health care is
available to all residents within its service area.

SBHCD has determined that entering into this Agreement with Physician is in the best interests of the
Hospital and the public health of the residents of the Hospital Service Area and is an appropriate way to
assure availability of rural health clinic services to patients in the Hospital Service Area.

The parties desire to enter into this Agreement to set forth their respective responsibilities in connection
with the Services provided by Physician in the Hospital Service Area during the term of this Agreement.

The parties hereby agree as follows:

1.1

.2

ARTICLE 1 - DUTIES AND OBLIGATIONS OF PHYSICIAN

Medical Services. Physician shall (“Physician”), provide professional health care services in Physician’s
medical specialty to patients at Clinic and/or Hospital and on the schedule more fully described in Exhibit
A, which is attached to this Agreement and incorporated by this reference (“Services”). Services include
Medicare services, Medi-Cal services, services pursuant to any other federal health care program or a
state health care financial program (“Governmental Programs”), workers’ compensation services, and
charity care. Physician shall cooperate to enable Clinic’s and Hospital’s participation in Medicare, Medi-
Cal, Governmental Programs, workers’ compensation services and commercial payor programs.
Physician shall provide Services to all patients, including Medicare, Medi-Cal, Governmental Program,
and workers’ compensation beneficiaries, in a non-discriminatory manner and in accordance with all
applicable laws and SBHCD policies and procedures, as developed and implemented in collaboration with
physician leadership of Hospital and Clinic.

Qualifications. Physician shall: (i) be duly licensed to practice medicine by the State of California; (ii)
be qualified to perform the Services by having adequate levels of competency and experience; (iii) have
skill comparable to those prevailing in the community; (iv) not be excluded from participation in any
governmental healthcare program; (v) be approved for and maintain active membership and/or clinical
privileges on the Hospital's medical staff in accordance with medical staff bylaws, rules and regulations,
and other medical staff governing directives; (vi) be certified as a participating physician in the Medicare
and Medi-Cal programs; and (vii) hold an unrestricted Drug Enforcement Administration ("DEA")
registration number.

Page 1 of 9

Sadek, M.D. PSA eff 1-5-26 40



1.3

1.4

1.5

1.6

1.7

1.8

2.1

2.2

23

Compliance. In connection with the operation and conduct of the Clinic and Hospital and rendition of
Services, Physician shall, at all times, comply with the applicable terms of this Agreement and with all
applicable federal, state and local laws, rules and regulations, including requirements for participation in
the Medicare and Medi-Cal programs, the Hospital medical staff bylaws, rules and regulations, and
applicable policies and procedures, and will at all times be aware of and participate in meeting the SBHCD
Corporate Compliance program goals and objectives.

Credentialing. In order to be efficiently credentialed with payors contracted with SBHCD, Physician shall
participate in the Council for Affordable Quality Healthcare (“CAQH”) credentialing program and shall
timely comply with requests from CAQH or SBHCD personnel for (i) credentialing information regarding
Physician, and (ii) documents necessary for the credentialing of Physician.

Use of Premises. No part of the SBHCD premises shall be used at any time by Physician as an office for
the general or private practice of medicine.

Medical Records/Chart Notes. Physician shall provide appropriate and necessary documentation for each
patient’s medical record for all patient encounters in the Clinic and Hospital in compliance with the
hospital’s and clinics’ policies and procedures.

Coding. Physician shall properly code all professional services rendered to patients. Physician’s coding
shall be used for purposes of billing for Services provided by Physician. All such coding shall be subject
to review and audit by an independent auditing company mutually agreed upon by the parties.

Professional Standards. In performing Services, Physician shall comply with the principles and ethics of
the American Medical Association, the California Medical Association and any federal, state or municipal
law, statute or ordinance dealing with the practice of medicine by Physician. Physician shall further abide
in all respects with the Code of Conduct applicable to professional health care providers of any hospital,
outpatient clinic or surgery center, including but not limited to SBHCD, at which Physician shall provide
professional services. Physician shall provide services to all SBHCD patients on a courteous and prompt
basis, be available and accessible to patients, provide them with full and meaningful information and
render services in a manner which assures continuity of care.

ARTICLE 2 - DUTIES AND OBLIGATIONS OF SBHCD

Duties. SBHCD agrees to furnish at its own cost and expense, for the operation of the Clinic and Hospital,
the following:

2.1.1 Space and Equipment. Space and Equipment as may be reasonably required for the operation of
the Clinic and Hospital as approved by SBHCD.

2.1.2  Services and Supplies. Maintenance, repair, and replacement of equipment as are reasonably
required; all utilities, including telephone, power, light, gas, and water; and all supplies that may
be reasonably required for the operation of the Clinic and Hospital.

2.1.3 Non-physician Personnel. All non-physician personnel with appropriate education, training and
experience required to operate the Clinic and Hospital, including a qualified administrative
manager. SBHCD shall have the sole right and responsibility for the hiring and termination of
all its employees. SBHCD shall be responsible for the scheduling of non-physician Clinic and
Hospital personnel.

Eligibility. At all times during the term of this Agreement, Clinics and Hospital shall remain eligible to
participate in the Medicare and Medi-Cal programs.

Contracts. SBHCD shall be solely responsible for negotiating all contracts for the reimbursement of
Services provided in the Clinic and Hospital. SBHCD in its sole and absolute discretion shall determine
the negotiation parameters for the terms, conditions, and rates for such contracts.

Page 2 of 9

Sadek, M.D. PSA eff 1-5-26 4 1



24

3.1

3.2

4.1

4.2

5.1

5.2

5.3

Sadek, M.D. PSA eff 1-5-26

Access to Records. Physician shall have access to the SBHCD patient medical and business records for
quality of care and compliance purposes.

ARTICLE 3 - BILLING AND ASSIGNMENT OF REVENUE

Billing and Collection. SBHCD shall perform billing and collection services under this Agreement.
Physician shall cooperate with SBHCD and shall use his/her best efforts to furnish appropriate
documentation of patient care services provided by Physician to enable SBHCD to timely and accurately
bill and collect for such services.

Assignment of Professional Service Revenues. Physician hereby assigns to SBHCD the right to all
revenue from any and all patients, third-party payors, and governmental programs for all Services
rendered by Physician and its Physicians at the Hospital and the Clinic under this Agreement. The Parties
intend that SBHCD may bill and collect directly from the Medicare carrier for Physician’s services to
Medicare beneficiaries in compliance with Medicare Publication 100-04, Chapter 1, Sec. 30.2.7.

ARTICLE 4 - COMPENSATION FOR SERVICES BY PHYSICIAN

Compensation. As compensation for the provision of Services in the Clinic and Hospital, SBHCD shall
pay Physician as outlined in Exhibit A to this Agreement and in accordance with the normal SBHCD
contract payment process for Services provided by Physician. Physician shall not bill for facility fees,
administrative, supervisory, medical director, or similar services.

Schedule of Charges. SBHCD, in its sole and absolute discretion, shall decide upon the schedule of
charges for the Clinic and Hospital. Pursuant to California Health and Safety Code Section 32129, the
SBHCD Board of Directors may review the fees and charges for Services provided at the Clinic and
Hospital to ensure such fees and charges are reasonable, fair, and consistent with the basic commitment
of SBHCD to provide adequate health care to all residents within the Hospital Service Area.

ARTICLE 5 - TERM AND TERMINATION

Term. The term of this Agreement shall commence on the Effective Date and continue for a period of
two (2) years, ending January 4, 2028 at 11:59 PM, unless terminated earlier as provided in this
Agreement, and shall renew for successive one (1) year periods upon mutual written agreement of the
parties.

Termination. Either party shall have the right to terminate this Agreement without stating a cause or
reason and without cost or penalty upon sixty (60) days’ prior written notice to the other party.
Notwithstanding, either party shall have the right to terminate the Agreement for cause upon written notice
to the other party as set forth below. If this Agreement is terminated prior to expiration of the initial year
of the term, the parties shall not enter into any new agreement or arrangement during the remainder of
such year.

Definition of Cause. For purposes of this Agreement, “cause” shall include, but not be limited to, the
occurrence of any of the following events:

5.3.1 SBHCD or Physician is in breach of any material term or condition of this Agreement and such
breach has not been cured within thirty (30) days following written notice of such breach.

5.3.2 SBHCD or Physician becomes insolvent or declares bankruptcy.

5.3.3 The license to practice medicine or to prescribe controlled substances of Physician is revoked or
suspended.

Page 3 of 9

42



5.4

6.1

6.2

53.4 SBHCD fails to carry or reinstate the insurance required in ARTICLE 8 of this Agreement or
such coverage is cancelled or revoked within fifteen (15) days following notice of revocation
from its insurance carrier.

5.3.5 Upon the determination that Physician has violated a material term of ARTICLE 9 of this
Agreement.

5.3.6 The performance by either party of any term, condition, or provision of this Agreement which
Jjeopardizes the licensure of Hospital, Hospital’s participation in Medicare, Medi-Cal or other
reimbursement or payment program, or Hospital’s full accreditation by The Joint Commission or
any other state or nationally recognized accreditation organization, or the tax-exempt status of
Hospital’s bonds, or if for any other reason such performance violates any statute, ordinance, or
is otherwise deemed illegal, or is deemed unethical by any recognized body, agency, or
association in the healthcare fields, and the jeopardy or violation has not been or cannot be cured
within sixty (60) days from the date notice of such jeopardy or violation has been received by the
parties.

5.3.7 The loss of or reduction in Physician’s medical staff privileges at any facility where Physician
provides professional health care services, whether voluntary or involuntary.

5.3.8 Physician being charged with or convicted of a crime other than an infraction, traffic citation, or
similar charge.

53.9 Physician’s engagement in: (i) willful misconduct (which means the knowing and intentional
failure to exercise ordinary care to prevent material injury to SBHCD or the commission of an
intentional act with knowledge that it is likely to result in material injury to the SBHCD), (ii)
fraudulent activities, (iii) crimes or acts of moral turpitude, (iv) any breach of a duty to SBHCD,
a patient, or any third party payor, (v) sexual harassment or abuse, or (vi) or any other action or
omission that could materially affect SBHCD’s business or reputation in an adverse manner.

Termination/Expiration Not Subject to Fair Hearing. It is agreed between the parties that should either
party exercise its right to terminate this Agreement such decision to terminate, and the actual termination
or expiration of this Agreement, shall apply to rights under this Agreement only and not to Physician’s
medical staff privileges or membership on the medical staff of Hospital. The termination or expiration of
this Agreement shall not be subject to the Fair Hearing Plan of the Medical Staff Bylaws, the hearing
procedures provided by Healthcare District Law, or any other fair hearing procedure regarding medical
staff appointments or privileges.

ARTICLE 6 - INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR

Independent Contractor Status. Physician is engaged in an independent contractor relationship with
SBHCD in performing all work, services, duties, and obligations pursuant to this Agreement. Neither
SBHCD nor Hospital shall exercise any control or direction over the methods by which Physician
performs work and functions, except that Physician shall perform at all times in strict accordance with
then currently approved methods and practices of Physician’s professional specialty. SBHCD’s sole
interest is to ensure that Physician performs and renders services in a competent, efficient, and satisfactory
manner in accordance with high medical standards.

Independent Contractor Responsibilities. The parties expressly agree that no work, act, commission, or
omission of Physician pursuant to the terms and conditions of this Agreement shall be construed to make
or render Physician, the agent or employee of SBHCD or Hospital. Physician shall not be entitled to
receive from SBHCD or Hospital vacation pay, sick leave, retirement benefits, Social Security, workers’
compensation, disability or unemployment insurance benefits or any other employee benefit. Physician
shall be solely responsible for paying when due all income, employment and withholding taxes and
employment benefits, if any, including estimated taxes, incurred as a result of the compensation paid by
SBHCD to Physician for Services under this Agreement. Physician is responsible for providing, at his/her

Page 4 of 9

Sadek, M.D. PSA eff 1-5-26 43



own expense, disability, unemployment, workers’ compensation and other insurance (if applicable),
training, permits and licenses.

ARTICLE 7 - REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES

7.1 SBHCD Representations and Warranties. SBHCD for itself, and its board of directors, officers,
employees, and agents (collectively, “Agents™), represents and warrants to SBHCD, upon execution and
while this Agreement is in effect, as follows:

7.1.1

7.1.2

SBHCD has all requisite power and authority to enter into this Agreement and to perform its
obligations under this Agreement;

This Agreement has been duly authorized, executed, and delivered by SBHCD and is a legal,
valid, binding obligation of SBHCD, enforceable in accordance with its terms;

The parties have bargained at arms’ length to determine Physician’s compensation under this
Agreement, the compensation is fair market value for the Services; and the compensation is
consistent with fair market value for similar services in the region; and

The execution and delivery of this Agreement and the consummation of the transactions
contemplated hereby by SBHCD will not violate and provisions of, or constitute a default under,
and contract or other agreement to which SBHCD is a party or by which it is bound, other than
violations, defaults or conflicts that would not materially and adversely affect the ability of
SBHCD to perform the its obligations pursuant to this Agreement.

7.2 Physician Representations and Warranties. Physician, for Physician and Physician’s Agents, represents

and warrants to SBHCD, upon execution and while this Agreement is in effect, as follows:

7.2.1

722

7.2.3

7.2.4

7.2.5

7.2.6

7.2.7

Physician is not bound by any agreement or arrangement which would preclude Physician from
entering into, or from fully performing the Services;

Physician's license to practice medicine in California or in any other jurisdiction has never been
denied, suspended, revoked, terminated, voluntarily relinquished under threat of disciplinary
action, or restricted in any way;

Physician's medical staff privileges at any health care facility have never been denied, suspended,
revoked, terminated, voluntarily relinquished under threat of disciplinary action, or made subject
to terms of probation or any other restriction;

Physician has not in the past conducted, and is presently not conducting, his/her medical practice
in such a manner as to cause Physician to be suspended, excluded, barred or sanctioned under
Medicare or Medi-Cal, or any government licensing agency, nor have they every been convicted
of a criminal offense related to health care, or listed by a federal agency as debarred, excluded or
otherwise ineligible for federal program participation;

Physician has, and shall maintain throughout the term of this Agreement, an unrestricted license
to practice medicine in California and Medical Staff privileges at Facility;

Physician has all requisite power and authority to enter into this Agreement and to perform its
obligations under this Agreement;

This Agreement has been duly authorized, executed, and delivered by Physician and is a legal,
valid, binding obligation of Physician, enforceable in accordance with its terms; and

Page 5 of 9

Sadek, M.D. PSA eff 1-5-26 . 44



8.1

9.1

7.2.8 The parties have bargained at arms’ length to determine Physician’s compensation under this
Agreement, the compensation is fair market value for the Services; and the compensation is
consistent with fair market value for similar services in the region; and

729 The execution and delivery of this Agreement and the consummation of the transactions
contemplated hereby by Physician will not violate and provisions of, or constitute a default under,
and contract or other agreement to which Physician is a party or by which it is bound, other than
violations, defaults or conflicts that would not materially and adversely affect the ability of
Physician to perform the Services required under this Agreement.

ARTICLE 8 - LIABILITY/MALPRACTICE INSURANCE COVERAGE

Coverages. SBHCD shall maintain general and professional liability insurance coverage for Physician
for Services provided by Physician to SBHCD patients during the term of this Agreement in a minimum
amount of $1,000,000 per occurrence and $3,000,000 annual aggregate. In the event the coverage that
SBHCD obtains to comply with this Section of this Agreement is a “claims made” policy, and SBHCD,
as applicable, changes insurance carriers or terminates coverage upon or after termination of this
Agreement, SBHCD shall immediately obtain and shall maintain “tail” coverage in the amounts otherwise
required under this Section for at least seven (7) years following termination of this Agreement.

ARTICLE 9 - PROTECTED HEALTH INFORMATION

Protected Health Information. Physician shall maintain the confidentiality of all Protected Health
Information (“PHI”) in accordance with all applicable federal, state, and local laws and regulations,
including, but not limited to, the California Confidentiality of Medical Information Act and the Federal
Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996 and regulations promulgated thereunder
(“HIPAA™). Without limiting the foregoing, Physician agrees to maintain PHI, as defined from time to
time under HIPA A, which may be made available to or received by Physician pursuant to this Agreement,
in accordance with the requirements of HIPAA. Physician agrees that Physician shall:

9.1.1 Not use or further disclose PHI in a manner that would violate HIPAA if done by Hospital or
violate the requirements of applicable laws or this Agreement;

9.1.2  Use appropriate safeguards to prevent use or disclosure of PHI except as permitted by law and
the terms of this Agreement, and report to Hospital any use or disclosure of PHI not permitted by
law or by this Agreement of which Physician becomes aware;

9.1.3 Comply with the elements of any compliance program established by Hospital that applies to the
use or disclosure of PHI and ensure that any subcontractors or agents to whom Physician provides
PHI agree to the same restrictions and conditions that apply to Physician with respect to such
PHI;

9.1.4 Inaccordance with HIPAA, (i) make available PHI to the subject Patient; (ii) make available PHI
for amendment and incorporate any amendments to PHI; and (iii) make available the information
required to provide an accounting of disclosures of PHI to the subject Patient;

9.1.5 Make Physician’s internal practices, books, and records relating to the use and disclosure of PHI
available to the Secretary of the United States Department of Health and Human Services for
purposes of determining Hospital’s and Physician’s compliance with HIPAA;

9.1.6 At termination of this Agreement, return or destroy all PHI received from or created by SBHCD
and retain no copies of such PHI or, if return or destruction is not permissible under law or the
terms of this Agreement, continue to maintain all PHI in accordance with the provisions of this
Section and limit further uses and disclosures to those purposes that make the return or destruction
of the information infeasible.

Page 6 of 9

Sadek, M.D. PSA eff 1-5-26 4 5



9.2

10.1

11.2

11.3

Electronic Protected Health Information (“EPHI”). Physician agrees that Physician will: (i) implement
administrative, physical, and technical safeguards that reasonably and appropriately protect the
confidentiality, integrity, and availability of the EPHI that Physician creates, receives, maintains, or
transmits on behalf of SBHCD; (ii) report to SBHCD any security incident with respect to EPHI of which
Physician becomes aware; and (iii) ensure that any agent, including a subcontractor, to whom Physician
provides EPHI agrees to implement reasonable and appropriate safeguards to protect such information.

ARTICLE 10 - REQUIRED DISCLOSURES

Required Disclosures. Physician shall notify SBHCD in writing within three (3) days after any of the
following events occur:

10.1.1 Physician's license to practice medicine in the State of California or any other jurisdiction lapses
or is denied, suspended, revoked, terminated, voluntarily relinquished (under threat of
disciplinary action) or made subject to terms or probation or other restriction;

10.1.2 Physician's medical staff membership and/or privileges at any health care facility or entity are
denied, suspended, revoked, terminated, voluntarily relinquished (under threat of disciplinary
action), or made subject to terms of probation or other restriction;

10.1.3 Physician is required to pay damages in any malpractice action by way of judgment or
settlement, except that Physician shall not be required to breach a settlement or confidentiality
agreement;

10.1.4 Receipt of notice of the commencement of any investigation into Physician's medical license or
Physician's medical practice by the Medical Board of California, California Attorney General,
the Department of Health and Human Services Office of Inspector General, the Department of
Justice, or any other entity of federal, state, or local government;

10.1.5 Physician's Drug Enforcement Agency registration number is revoked, suspended, terminated,
relinquished, placed on terms of probation, or restricted in any way;

10.1.6 An event occurs that substantially interrupts all or a portion of Physician's professional practice,
that materially adversely affects Physician's ability to perform Physician's obligations
hereunder, including the Services, or which could likely cause Physician to be in breach of this
Agreement; or

10.1.7 Physician's conviction of a criminal offense related to health care or any Physician's listing by a
federal agency as being debarred, excluded or otherwise ineligible for federal program
participation.

ARTICLE 11 - GENERAL PROVISIONS

Notices. Any notice to be given to any party hereunder shall be deposited in the United States Mail, duly
registered or certified, with return receipt requested, with postage paid, and addressed to the party for
which intended, at the addresses set forth in the signature block, or to such other address or addresses as
the parties may hereafter designate in writing to each other.

No Waiver. No waiver of any of the provisions of this Agreement shall be deemed, or shall constitute, a
waiver of any other provision, whether or not similar, nor shall any waiver constitute a continuing waiver.
No waiver shall be binding unless executed in writing by the party making the waiver.

Governing Law and Venue. This Agreement shall be governed by, construed and enforced in accordance
with the laws of the State of California. Venue shall be in the County of San Benito, California.

Page 7 of 9

Sadek, M.D. PSA eff 1-5-26 4 6



11.4

11.5

11.6

11.7

11.8

11.9

11.10

11.11

Ownership of Patient Records. All Clinic and Hospital patient records shall be maintained by SBHCD
and are the property of SBHCD. Physician shall have the right to access such records during normal
business hours.

Patient Choice. Notwithstanding anything herein to the contrary, all compensation paid to Physician
pursuant to this Agreement is solely for the purpose of obtaining the services of Physician for patients of
the SBHCD community. The parties recognize and affirm the importance of individual patient choice in
selection of medical services. Nothing contained in this Agreement shall be interpreted to obligate,
encourage, or solicit, in any way, the referral of any individual patient to any health care facility, including
the Facility, contrary to that patient’s choice of another provider of medical services. Further, nothing in
this Agreement shall be interpreted to prevent, restrict, or discourage the Physician from referring patients
to any other provider of health care services.

Exclusive Property of SBHCD. All data, files, records, documents, promotional materials, and similar
items relating to the business of SBHCD, whether prepared by or with the assistance of Physician or
otherwise coming into Physician’s possession shall remain the exclusive property of SBHCD and shall
not be removed from SBHCD’s facilities under any circumstances without the prior written consent of
SBHCD.

Confidentiality. The parties acknowledge and agree that during the term of this Agreement and in the
course of the discharge of Physician’s duties hereunder, Physician shall have access to and become
acquainted with information concerning the operation of SBHCD, and information which, pursuant to
applicable law and regulation, is deemed to be confidential, including, but not limited to, trade secrets,
medical records, patient medical and personal information, and personnel records. Physician agrees that
such information shall not be disclosed either directly or indirectly to any other person or entity or used
by Physician in any way either during the term of this Agreement or at any other time thereafter, except
as is required herein. Physician understands breach of this article will be an irremediable breach of this
Agreement. Such breach will result in immediate termination of this Agreement.

Binding Agreement: No Assignment. This Agreement shall be binding upon and shall inure to the benefit
of the parties to it and their respective legal representatives, successors, and permitted assigns. No party
may assign this Agreement or any rights hereunder, or may they delegate any of the duties to be performed
hereunder without the prior written consent of the other party.

Dispute Resolution. If any dispute, controversy, or claim arises out of this Agreement, for a period of
thirty (30) days following written notice of the dispute, controversy or claim from one party to the other,
the parties will use their good faith efforts to resolve the dispute, controversy, or claim. If the matter
cannot be resolved by the parties in this fashion, then such dispute, claim or controversy shall be heard in
San Benito County, California, pursuant to the provisions of California Code of Civil Procedure Sections
638 through 645.1, inclusive. The hearing shall be final and binding to the greatest extent permitted by
law, and the cost thereof, including reasonable attorneys’ fees, shall be borne by the losing party in such
proportions as the referee may decide. Judgment on the award may be entered in any court having
jurisdiction thereof.

Section 952 of Omnibus Budget Reconciliation Act of 1980. In accordance with Section 952 of the
Omnibus Reconciliation Act of 1980 (PL 96-499), Physician agrees that the books and records of
Physician will be available to the Secretary of Department of Health and Human Services and the
Comptroller General of the United States, or their duly authorized representatives, for four (4) years after
termination of this Agreement. In the event that any of the services to be performed under this Agreement
are performed by any subcontractor of Physician at a value or cost of $10,000 or more over a twelve (12)
month period, Physician shall comply and assure that such subcontractor complies with the provisions of
Section 952 of the Omnibus Reconciliation Act of 1980. If not applicable to this Agreement, this Section
shall automatically be repealed.

Entire Agreement: Amendment. This Agreement, its exhibits, and all referenced documents constitute
the entire agreement between the parties pertaining to the subject matter contained herein. This

Page 8 of 9

Sadek, M.D. PSA eff 1-5-26 47



Agreement supersedes all prior and contemporaneous agreements, representations and understandings
of the parties which relate to the subject matter of this Agreement. No supplement, amendment or
modification of this Agreement shall be binding unless executed in writing by all of the parties. The
parties hereby executed this Agreement as of the Effective Date first set forth above.

SBHCD PHYSICIAN
SAN BENITO HEALTH CARE DISTRICT Mostafa Sadek, M.D.
By: By:

Mary T. Casillas, Chief Executive Officer Mostafa Sadek, M.D.
Address for Notices: Address for Notices:
San Benito Health Care District Mostafa Sadek, M.D.
Attn: Chief Executive Officer 30 Buckingham Drive Apt. 219
911 Sunset Drive Santa Clara, CA 95051
Hollister, CA 95023

(Remainder of page left blank intentionally)

Page 9 of 9
Sadek, M.D. PSA eff 1-5-26

48



Al

EXHIBIT A

PHYSICIAN SERVICES, COMPENSATION, HOUSING & REIMBURSEMENT OF EXPENSES

Further Description of Medical Services. Physician shall provide professional medical services in
Physician’s specialty at locations specified by SBHCD, which will be within the SBHCD healthcare district
boundaries, or at facilities within thirty (30) miles of the SBHCD Hospital.

A.l.l

Al2

Al3

Professional Services. Physician shall provide Services in the Clinic and Hospital beginning on
the Effective Date no less than fourteen (14) shifts per calendar month. Upon mutual agreement of
the parties and as patient demand requires, Physician make work additional shifts. For purposes of
this Section, a “shift” may consist of:

A.1.1 A 24- hour shift during which Physician is on-call for emergency services;

A.1.2 A shift at the Clinic during the Clinic's business hours, during which Physician is not on-

call for the emergency services; or

A.1.3 A shift at the Clinic during Clinic's business hours, and at the same time Physician is also

on-call for the emergency services; or

A.1.4 A shift in the Operating Room, during the Operating Room’s business hours, during

which the Physician is not on-call for the emergency services.

Physician shall provide such services in coordination with other physicians who are contracted with
SBHCD to provide similar services to patients and pursuant to a mutually agreed-upon schedule.
If Physician and other physicians cannot agree on such a schedule, SBHCD shall determine the
schedule.

Specialty Services. Physician shall provide the following General Surgery Services:

Management of Physician’s own admitted patients; management of the care of patients admitted at
the request of and with the attending or referring physician, and thereafter managing the care
rendered to such patients; family conferences as requested in consultation with social services;
consultations, upon request, for members of the Hospital’s Medical Staff, including the hospitalist
group; and assistance with the management and treatment of patients for whom Physician is
responsible as head of a multi-disciplinary team. When the patient has an attending/referring
physician, Physician shall include such physician in decision making and keep such physician
informed.

Clinic Services. Clinic operating hours are Monday through Friday, from 7:30 a.m. to 4:30 p.m.
Physician shall provide the following Clinic Services in the Clinics in accordance with the schedule
set forth in Section A.2 of this Exhibit A:

A.1.3.1 New and follow-up office visits;

A.1.3.2 Consultations;

A.1.3.3 Post discharge follow-up visits;

A.1.3.4 Ensuring the quality, availability, and expertise of medical services rendered in the Clinic
and at Clinic-related activities;

A.1.3.5 Supervising physician assistants and nurse practitioners (collectively referred to as “Mid-
Level Practitioners™) as necessary for reimbursement or consult in the absence of the
Medical Director;

A.1.3.6 Coordination of medical activities of the Clinic as a whole to be accomplished through
continuous communication with appropriate SBHCD administrative personnel regarding
medical administration of the Clinic;

A.1.3.7 Assisting with the development of a plan for quality assurance for the Clinic;

A.1.3.8 Provide required chart review and audits of care provided by Mid-Level Practitioners

A.1.3.9 Other services as are mutually agreed to be appropriate and appropriately provided in an
outpatient setting by a physician specializing in General Surgery.

Exhibit A — Page 1 of 3 4 9



A3

A4

AS

A2 Schedule. Physician shall provide Physician Services to SBHCD patients, which generally means
a minimum of fourteen (14) shifts per month, (and which includes Clinic time, scheduled operating
room time, inpatient rounding, and operating room add-on time) in the Hospital or Clinic setting.
Physician must provide forty-five (45) days’ notice for vacations and/or desired schedule changes
that would leave a gap in any coverage area. SBHCD will honor those requests should acceptable
coverage be secured. Physician is responsible for negotiating/scheduling coverage changes.

Hospital Call Coverage. Physician shall provide emergency department and unassigned patient call
coverage (“Hospital Call”) to support the needs of the Hospital, in accordance with Hospital Medical Staff
Bylaws; provided, however, that Physician may not discontinue providing Hospital Call pursuant to any
provision in the Hospital Medical Staff Bylaws. Hospital Call includes responding to the emergency
department, inpatient units, and the operating room.

A3.1 Hospital Call Requirements. General Surgery Call Panel on a schedule to be mutually agreed
upon, for a minimum of eleven (11) shifts per month.

A.3.2 Hospital Call Days Included in Base Compensation. Compensation amounts include provision
of a minimum of one hundred thirty-two (132) days of Hospital Call coverage per contract year.

A3.3 Billed Services Included in Productivity Compensation. To the extent Physician performs
services in the course of Hospital Call coverage which are billed, SBHCD will solely be responsible
for billing and collecting.

Compensation.

A.4.1 Shift Compensation.

A. Physician’s Shift Compensation, which includes professional services, supervision, and
Hospital Call activities (“Shift Compensation™), shall be paid monthly on a per shift basis on
SBHCD’s standard payment cycle for similar agreements and shall be in the amount of Two
Thousand Eight Hundred Dollars and No Cents ($2,800.00) per shift.

A.42 Payment on Termination. On termination of this Agreement, which is not extended, renewed or
superseded by another agreement, SBHCD shall pay to Physician any amounts due to Physician
within forty-five (45) days after the termination of this Agreement.

A.43 Agreement Includes All Compensation from SBHCD. Incorporated into compensation under
the Agreement, unless specifically excluded, are all the Physician’s sources of practice revenues
and income, including Hospital Call coverage stipends, other hospital on-call fees, hospital stipends,
and reading fees; provided, however, that services as a medical director within SBHCD, service on
medical staff or SBHCD positions such as department chair or chief of staff, call panels which are
not currently in effect, or other items specifically excluded by written agreement between Physician
and SBHCD shall be independently compensated to Physician by SBHCD, if any, and are not
subject to the terms of this Agreement.

Continuing Medical Education. For each contract year during the term of this Agreement, Physician shall
be entitled reimbursement for continuing medical education (“CME”) expenses incurred during the contract
year up to a maximum of one thousand seven hundred fifty dollars (§1,750.00). Reimbursable expenses
include registration fees, books, or other course materials, and specifically excludes travel, lodging or food
expenses. Unused CME expense reimbursement funds do not roll over to the following year nor may they
be cashed out or paid out upon termination of this Agreement. Payment for reimbursable CME expenses
shall be made in accordance with applicable SBHCD policies following receipt of appropriate
documentation. Physician shall be responsible for maintaining Physician’s CME documentation.

Exhibit A — Page 2 of 3 5 O



A6

A7

A8

Housing. SBHCD will provide Physician with local housing accommodations while Physician is providing
Services under this Agreement at a rate consistent with local market occupancy rates. Housing
accommodation is to be used from arrival the day before the start of the shift and ending on the last day of
shift.

Services and Activities in Support of SBHCD. SBHCD and Physician acknowledge and agree that certain
services and activities may be required of Physician in support of SBHCD and Clinic to ensure a continuing
high level of patient care. To that end, Physician shall participate in functions/events from time to time, in
support of the SBHCD Clinics and the SBHCD facilities. In addition, to assist in the recruitment and
retention of highly skilled practitioners, upon SBHCD’s request, Physician shall participate in recruitment
meetings with SBHCD physician candidates. SBHCD shall reimburse Physician for reasonable meal
expenses incurred as part of meeting with physician candidates hosted at the request of SBHCD.

Practice Guidelines/Best Quality Practices. Physician shall demonstrate cooperative work arrangements
with the Medical Staff, Quality and Safety Leadership and SBHCD Administration to achieve mutually
accepted practice guidelines and the best quality practices. These practices will be evidenced based, and
include at minimum the following;:

A.8.1 Attendance at regular monthly meetings with SBHCD Clinic and Hospital leadership when
requested to review any operational or quality issues.

A.8.2 Timely completion of all patient records.
Goal: As specified by Medical Staff rules and regulations or hospital policy.

A.8.3 Completion of all procedure notes within twenty-four (24) hours of visit.
Goal: As specified by Medical Staff rules and regulations or hospital policy.

A.8.4 Timely signing of orders.
Goal: As specified by Medical Staff rules and regulations or hospital policy.

A.8.5 Timely discharges summaries.
Goal: As specified by Medical Staff rules and regulations or hospital policy.

A.8.6 Commitment to use of SBHCD supported electronic health/medical record platforms.

A.8.7 Compliance with all governmental and SBHCD quality reporting initiatives that may come into
effect from time to time.

A.8.8 Timely arrival at the facility, defined as being ready, willing and able to provide Services not less

than 10 minutes before the commencement of any in-person shift and responding to on-call
coverage times set forth in the Medical Staff rules and regulations.

Exhibit A — Page 3 of 3 5 1





